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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

Overview of the period

The Directors present their report and the consolidated linancial statements for SG (Hlobal Topeo Limited, “the Company ', and
its subsidiaries. together “the Group™ or ~Study Group . for the period ended 31 December 2019, The Company is dormiciled in
the United Kingdom with 1ts registered office at 1 Billinton Way. Bnghton, East Sussex, BNI 4LV, and the Group is
headquartered in J.ondon.

Incorperation and Acquisition

The Company was ingorporated on 14 February 2019 in order to acquire EDU UK Topeo Limited. the parent ol the Study Group
familv of companies. The acquisition subsequently occurred on 31 May 2019, Further details of this acquisition are contaned
in Note 29 of the linancial statements.

At the date of acquisition. Ardian 1130 Fund VI B 8.1..P. " Ardian’) became the majority shareholder of Studv Group. following
almest nine v ears of ownership by Providence Hquity Partners.

In addition to executive Direetors Fmma Lancaster (CT0)) and Nick Williams (CEFO). the Board includes {ive non-executive
Iirectors [rom Ardian. We were also delighted to welcome Sir Keith Burnett FRS. former Vice Chaneellor of University of
Sheffield. to the Board shortly alter the acquisition. Studv Group’s Chatrman since July 2019 s Ralph Kugler, a former executive
with Unilever and Chairman of Cognita and amongst other education activities, 4 current Board Trustee on the largest primary
school MAT. Please see pages 14-15 for more details aboul the [irectors.

Pro-forma Group results

The statutory reporting includes seven months of trading for the Group since it acquired EDU UK Topeo Limited on 31 May
2019. In order to provide a meaningful understanding of the Group’s performance. the Directors have also meluded in ther
report pro-Lorma results of the Group to show the full twelve months” results of Study Group as i Study Group had been ovned
by 8G Global Topeo Limited from | January 20149, and provided commentary against the comparable 12 month prior vear
period. These pro-forma 12 months™ results are reported incorporating the impact of I[IFRS 16 as it it had been in place for both
periods and referred o as “Full Year™ results throughout.

Overview

study Croup is the leading international provider of international education. driving suceess tor its students and partners. Its
core business is the delivery of Higher Hducation and Pathway programmes, referred to hereatter as the “University Partnerships™
business. This entails providing undergraduate foundation or International Year 1. Pre-Muasters and Masters programmes to
international students in the United Kingdom, Furope. the United States. Canada, Australia and New Zealand. [t delivers these
programmes jn seven countries, primarily on the campuses of its partner universities o international students [Tom over 140
countries.

The results throughout this report are wholly attributable to the University Partnerships business. The Group operates three
operating segments: United Kingdom & Hurope (UK&EU™) Australia & New Zealand (C AN/ and North America CINA™).

In 2019 there was strong overall continuing revenue perfomance of £148.6 million for the seven months and £275.7 million for
the Fult Year (2018 Full Year: £269.7 mullion™")

The Group has continued with its strategy of developing partnerships with chosen universities, both new and extsting. During
2019, it renewed two university partnerships in Europe, Tilburg University and Hanze University. It also signed two new UK
partners during the vear, Cardifl University (launched n 20207 and the University of Aberdeen (launched i 2019). In the US,
DePaul Tniversity and (he University of Hartford were acquired trom KC English. [r 2020 the Group acquired Insendi Limited,
an onlinc learning platform based in the UK, refer to Note 29 for more details.

The strong Group revenue perlormance of the University Partnerships business converted to adjusted EBITIDA™ of £22.5 million
and reported FBITDA™ of £12.3 million for the seven month period and adjusted EBITDA of £53.0 million and reported
LBITDA of £40.0 million for the Full Year (2018 Full Year adjusted and reported LBITDIA™: £56.8 mullion and £57.3 million
respeetively).

" Adjusted EBITIA for both 2018 and 2019 is defined as carnings before interest. tax. depreciation. amontisation. smpairment and exceptional and other items
(see Note 8 for details of exceptional and other items) and is reported under [FFRS 16, Exceptional items are those which are material in sive and are non-recurring
in nature. Other items are not necessarity non-recurring in nature. but the Directors believe that it is helpful 1o show these amounts scparately as they are not
directly linhed 1o the trading operations of the business.

U Reported EBITIDA is defined as carnings betore interest. tax. depreciation. amortisation. and impairment,

2018 revenue and adjusted and reported EBITDA have been restated at 2019 foreign exchange rates to show the results at constant currency. Lmounls at
actual tates have been disclosed on page 3. 2018 futll vear results have been restated as if IFRS 16 was applied [rom | January 2018,
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Operating and financial review

Key performance indicators

The ttnancial and non-fnancial KPIs for the cortinuing business are as follows, These KPlIs are selected for monitoring of the
Group’s medium term goal of continied revenue and EBITDA growth. Given the shertened statutory period. pre-forma Full
Year 2019 and 2018 figures under IFRS 16 have been provided for comparability

The strong Group revenue performance of the core business converted to adjusted EBITDA" of £33 .0 million Tor the I'ull Year.
compared 1o £36.8 million for the 2018 Full Year at constant currencey*™ . This decline was predominantiv due to a change in the
mix of programmes in Australia. refer to the Australia & New Zealand commentary on the next page for details. Fxcluding this.
adjusted EBITIIA was reasonably flat after making additional investments in our sales and marketing capability. positioning the
Group well for future growth.

Statutory results Pro-foerma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 %
7 months © 12 months 12 months™  Variance

Revenue (£m) 148.6 275.7 2729 19

Constant curtency adjustment " (£m) (3.2)
Revenue at constant currency (£m) 148.6 275.7 2697 2%
Adpusted EBITDAY (£m) 22.5 53.6 38.4 (9%

Constant curreney adjustment "' (£n3) ¢1.6)
Adjusted EBITDA" at constant currency (£m) 22.5 53.0 368 (7%
Operating (loss)/profit before Exceptional and
Other items (£m) (1.3) 13.4 4.4 =100
New student enrolmenis (NSE) ®® n/a 14,450 13.303 994

The Group’s results by operating segment are summarised as {ollows and shown at constant curreney ™ o allow tor a like-
for-like Year on Year comparison:

Revenue
Statutory results Pre-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 Yo

£m 7 months™ 12 months 12 months™  Variance
On a continuing operations basis under IFRS 16:

United Kingdom & Turope 79.4 153.4 139.1 10%h
Australia & New Zealand 62.0 112.1 1239 (10%)
North America 7.2 16.2 6.7 52%
Total 148.6 275.7 26497 29

{i)  Sce definition on page 2.

(1} An NSE represents one new student arrtving and ensolling in a course.

(i) 2018 revenue and adjusted EBITIA have been restated at 2019 foreign cxchange rates to show the results at constant currency.

(iv) 2018 fulf vear resulis bave been restated as if IFRS 16 was applicd from 1 January 2018,

(v} The parent entity was incorporated on 14 February 2019 and the acquisition ot the trading group occurred on 31 May 2019 thus the resubts rellect
7 months of trade.
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Adjusted EBITDA®
Statutory results Pro-forma Full Year resulis
2019 2019 2018 %o

£m 7 months® 12 months 12 monihs® Variance
Cn a contining operations basis under [FRS 16:

United Kingdom & Turope 15.9 37.5 54 6%
Australia & New Zealand 21.8 42.4 491 L 1d%)
North America (1.2) 2.7 4.3 0%
Total University Parmerships 30.5 77.2 8.0 (4%%)
Shared functional & corporate costs (14.0) (24.2) (23.2) 49
Total 22.5 53.0 56.8 (7%)

Reconciliation of reported EBITDA to adjusted ERITIA at actual foretgn exchange rates:

Statutory results Pro-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 %
£m 7 months® 12 months 12 months® Variance
On a continuing operations basis under IFRS 16:
Reported BIITIYA!® detined s iiion pags =) 12.3 40.0 58R (329%)
I'xeeptional and other items 10.2 13.0 {0.4) = 1005
Adjusted EI3[TDAes dofincdin fihon page 2) 22.5 53.0 58.4 (9%

Review of results by Operating Segment

The following section provides commertary for the Full Year pro-forma rvesull against the comparable twelve monih prior year
period re-transhated at constant curreney 2019 foreign exchange rutes and the adoption of KRS 16 to allow for a like-for-like
COMPUrison.

Choerall Study Group saw NSE (New Students Enrolled) grow from 13,303 to 14430, an increase of 9%.

UK & Furope

['ull vear revenue m 2019 inereased by 10% to £153 4 million (2018: £139.1 million), mainly as a result of higher NSE with key
university partners across the UK. There was ajso a revenue benelit from a Favourable centre mix. with more volume n higher
priced centres. Adjusted EBTITDA growth was 6% to £37.5 million (2018: £35 4 million).

Australia & New Zealard

In Australia, a change in programmes at the Australian National Umiversity (¢ ANTT ) resulted in lower NS m the vear. This was
oflset by NSE growth in other ANZ partners and the inclusion ol the hirst fubl vear of the Umversity of Waikato, resulting 1in an
overall small 2% decline in ANZ NSIE in 2019, Excluding the ANUL ANZ NSE grew by 3%. Increased student volumes across
a range of programmes and campuses partially offset the ANU decline but ded to overall revenue deeline of 10% to £112.1
million (2018: £123.9 million). This led to an adjusted EBITDA decline of 14% to £42.4 million (2018: £49.1 million).

North America

Full year revenue in 2019 increased by 32% to £10.2 million (2018: £6.7 million). NST were up 71% to 856 (2018: 500). The
increase was primarily due to an inercase in student numbers al Baylor University ., as well as the impact of opening two new
centres - DePaul and Hartford. This provides a strong foundation for revenue growth in future years. Adjusted EBITDA ftor the
vear improved to a loss of £2.7 million (2018: £4.5 million loss). North America reported a loss as a result of further upfront set-
up costs meurred in 2019 for new centres.

Shared functional and corperate costs

Functional and corporate costs, being largely central 1T, finance, TR and head office costs increased by 4% to £24.2 million
(2018: £23.2 million), due 1o investiments made Lo strengthen central functions to support growth in the busiiess. These costs
are managed and controlled centrally and as such are reported separately from the Group’s operating scgments.

(1 See definition on page 3 for Statutory resulls foomote (v) and for 2018 results footnote (iv).
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The following section provides conuneniary mainly for the seven months period (o 31 December 2019,

Exceptional and Other items included in reported EBITDA

Exeeptional items are those which are miaterial in sive and are non-recurring in nature. Other items are not necessarily non-
recurring in nature, but the Iirectors believe that it is helptul to show these amounts separately as thev are not directly linked to
the recurrimg trading operations of the business.

Total Exceptional and Other 1tems included in reported ERITDA for the period ended 31 December 2019 ¢as delined in foolnote
(i) on page 2) total £10.2 million and include £6 0 million of transaction fees in respect of the change of ownership. £1.9 nullion
strategic investments related 1o a corperate strategy project, £1.8 mitlion restructuring costs. £0.9 million of sharcholder and
managerment fees and £(0.4) million relaling to property provisions.

Depreciation and amortisation
Bepreciation and amortisation for the period ended 31 December 2019 total £23.7 million. The Full Year total of £37.6 mitlion
(2018 £31.0 mtllion) includes additional amounts expensed under [FRS 16.

Finance cxpense

The net finance expense for the period ended 31 December 2019 was £14 8 million. The largest finance expense was interest on
the term loans ot £9.8 million which have an interest marain of 6. 00%. The revolving eredit Facilice ("RCEF) remained undirawn
at the peried end due to adequate cash held across the Group. In addition. other linance costs include non-commitment lees on
the undrawn RCE of £0.1 million, amortisation of deferred borrowing costs of £0 7 million. IFRS 16 net finance costs tor leases
of £2.8 million and exceptional finance costs of £0.7 million arising [rom foreign exchange losses.

Taxation

For the period to 31 December 2019, the Group received a total tax eredit of £4.0 million being a current lax charge of £1.0
million and a deferred tax eredit of £3.0 million. The deferred tax credit was largely due to the secumulation of unused tax losses
as well as the difference between allowable tax depreciation and accounting depreciation. During this period. a net cash tax
outflow of £0.2 million was paid predonunantly relating to tax pavable in China.

Loss after taxation
After deducting the above depreeiation and amortisation. tinance expenses and taxation [rom Reported EBITIDA of £12.3
million. the loss alter taxation from contuing operations for the period 1o 3 1 December 2019 was £22.5 million.

Balance sheet position
Net debt. being external borrowings less available cash, was £177.5 million at 31 December 2019, Despite the loss lor the period.
cash remained positive and the revolving credit facility of £30.0 million was fully unutilised as at 31 December 2019

Cash flow

The Group generated free cash intlow (being cash available to service debt) of £30.3 million in the period ended 31 December
2019. Tree cash [Tow for the total business ineluded cash exceptional outllows of £3.7 million. a cash inflow of £44.0 million
relating to movements in net working capital due to advance student fees collections mainly in the UK. a net cash tax outllow
of £0.2 million, and capital cxpenditure of £10.5 million.

Exceptional cash outflows primarily related to a Group strategy project (£1 6 million) and restructuring costs (£1.2 mitlion).

Capital expenditure m the period was for continued investment across the business, both in 'l developments and tangible spend.
including taunch costs for new centres.

A reconetiiation of adjusted EBITDA to frec cash tlow 1s set out below:

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Free Cash flow 2019
7 Months

£m

Adjusted EBITDA for the continuing business 225
EBITDA attributable to discontlinued businesses (1L.8)
Cash exceptional and other 1temns (37N
Movement in working capital 440
Cash tax paid (0.2)
Capital expenditure and other investment aclivities (105
Free cash flow 50.3

hn
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2020 developments including the impact of and response to Cevid-19
In February 2020 shortly before the {irst impact ol Covid-19 the Group acquired Insendi [Limited, an online leamning platform
based in the UK. refer to Note 30 for more details.

2020 has scen unprecedented chatlenpes for many scctors around the world due to public health restrictions on international
ravel and face-te-face gathermgs. The impact on international education was first seen by Study Group's student recruitment
team in China and Singapore. quickly followed by a series of regional lockdowns in Australia and New Zealand. and then in the
1TK and continental Furope.

In the tace of these changes. Study Group immediately implemented a coordmated senior team to support the safety and well -
being of students and statl and to lead the necessary actions globally, including:

+  Developing plans focused on enabling the sontinuation of high-quality teaching and student weltare 1o secure student
satisfaction and suceessful progression. regardless of whether students had remamed in the destination country or
returned to their home countites.

*  Working elosely with our university partners and in-house academnic teams to prvot our Study Centres to high-quality
blended and online learning which was recognised for progression by these institutions,

»  Throughout this pertod we also drew on the expertise of the Group's recently -acquired online learning platform. Insendi
Limited, which worked to quickly move our online oftering bevond emergency provision and to embed the principles
of best practice into online teaching, peer engagement and feedback.

«  Simultaneously suecessfully moving central functions and operational teams tully online. developing new formats and
channels for positive communications and engagement.

As a direct result of the above actions. satisfaction rates, centinuation and progression remained strong.

The impact of Covid-19 has continued into the second hall of 2020 and as a consequence the Group experienced reductions in
student recruitment during this period relative to pre-pandemic expectations. Although it remains the case that students continue
to wish to pursue studies overseas at leading international universities, they are also concerned about safetv, and limited
international travel has meant that demand across the market has softened. Despite this, Study Group made full use of 1ts own
ahility to control costs. made use ol government support schemes across the world. and instipated tarpeted student recruitment
and projeet development to adapt to a rapidly changing and uncertain context. Study Group has been strongly supported in this
approach by its majority sharcholder Ardian.

Study Group marked its 25th annmiversary as a company in 2020, taking pride n its track record as a leading provider of
international education and in its response to a global pandemic which demanded a coordinated response. a focus on the needs
of students. close working with umversity partners and the rapid embedding ol innovation in online education across our
operatons. As a result. the company has fast-iracked kev areas of its strategy and 13 looking forward with conlidence 1o a period
of inmovatien und renewal bevond Covid-19,

Going concern

At 31 October 2020 the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £29 8m. After consideration of the impact of Covid-19 on the
business as discussed below. meluding the application of scenario and sensitivity analvsis, and the ongoing support of the
CGroup’s majority sharcholder Ardian, there is positive cash headroom on committed facilities throughout the going concem
assessment period. This includes a commitment from Ardian to provide a capital injection of up 10 £30m 1f required. as part of
an agreement thatl has been reached with the Group's lenders. That agreement 1s subject to legal documentation, which 1s
currently 1n the process of being tinalised.

In making the going concern assessment, the Directors have taken into account the ongoeing impact of Covid-19 on the Group.
"The [ireetors have prepared a series of trading performance forecasts m terms of the impact of the pandemic on the business.
‘The going concern assessmment recognises the inherent uncertainty associated with any torecasting and the Directors believe that
the Group's strong financial and market position, together with its proactive management of evolving market conditions
including closcly managing costs and ensuring that hquidity is maintained with sufficient headroom, will ensure that the Group
will manage through the situation and will emerge strongly.

In an illustrative extreme downside scenario for the purposes of stress-testing the Group™s sirong lnancial position, NSE for the
first six month of 2021 could be over 30% lower than the same period in 2020, and NSI for the sceond six months of 2021 ne
better than the comparable period in 2020 which was impacted by Covid-19 betore cash resources would reach zero. Based on
curtent evidence available 1o the Direotors at the date of this report, the assumptions in this scenario are considered 1o be hughly
unlikelv. Therefore. under all reasonable downside scenarios modelled, and assuming the finalisation of the agreement with the
(Giroup’s lenders as referenced above. the group has sutficient commatted facilitics.
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The Group's term loan currently includes a single financial covenant requiring that the Group’s leverage ratio remains within
agreed limits. with which the Group was in compliance throughout the year and since the vear end. The agreement that has been
reached with the Giroup's lenders includes the setting aside of this covenant for a pertod that extends bevond the next 12 months,
subject to tinal legal documentation, and incorporating the commitment from Ardian to provide 4 capital injecton of up to £30m
i required. As a result of a reduction in NSE in the second six months of 2020, as outlined m more detail n the section above.
the “last 12 months EBITIDA used in the covenant caleulation during the gomng concern assessment peried is expeeted to be
materially lewer than it would have been before Covid-19. If the agreement to set aside the covenant had not been reached with
the lenders, a finaneial covenant breach resulting in the facilities becoming repavable from June 2021 would otherwise have
been forecast.

Given the above. the Board 15 contident that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continue to operate for
the foreseeable future. Because the agreement with the Group's Jenders remains subject to final legal documentation at the date
of approval of these Financial stutements, the Directors have concluded that these cireumstances represent a matenal uncertainty,
which may cast signiticant doubt en the Company 's and the Group's ability to continue as a gomng concern and realise its assets
and discharge its labilities in the nermal course of business. Iowever, because the Iireetors consider that any financial covenant
breach in the next 12 months from the date of these financial statements 1s highly unlikely due to the agreement reached. and
that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresceable future,
they continue 10 adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements.

Strategy
Study Group is committed to a strategy of continuing to strengthen its position as a leading provider of international education.
The Group has wdentified tour key pillars to achieve its strategy.

Strdent Swecess. A key factor in the success of the Group's partnerships 1s continuing to drive successtul student outcomes and
high progression rales to the partner institutions. During the year the Group saw a 1% improvenent on 2018 progression rates.

Partner Success: Study Group aims to continuously improve the serviee it provides to all ats stakcholders including its kev
TineTs.

Highlv Engaged Team: The Group understands that recruiting. developing and retaining a strong team will be critical to
achieving its strategic objectives. [t1s alse focused on ensuring that its emplovees are continually learning and growing at work.,

Growth-Lriven: Working with the best university partners to ensure Study Group can offer valuable propositions to its studenls
to support them with the next phase of their education. To this end, the Group is constantly looking for new opporiunities to
improve (he breadth of seurce channels in order 1o provide cultural and economic diversity for ils existing partners. as well as
expanding its olfering and maintaining strong relationships with current pariners, as evidenced by the renewals of two of its
existing university partnerships during the period (nine in 2018). The Group believes that this, coupled with a longer term goal
1o build new university parinerships and deveclop new products and business lines. positions it 1o be a global leader in
intemational higher education and deliver exceptional student outcomes. This can be evidenced by the addition of [our new
parinerships during the vear and the acquisition of Insendi in February 2020 to develop the Group's enlime fearning capabilities.

Studv Group believes that this strategy . combined with a continued focus on operational effectiveness and efficiency , will be
supportive of long term revenue and BRITDA growth.

Outlook

Overall, the Croup is pleased with the 2019 business performance and NSE volumes. The Board has considered the below
Principal Risks and Usncerlaintics, in particular the potential impact of Covid-19 on the business as discussed in the Going
Coneern section above and 1s contident that its strong financial and market position. together with its proactive management of
the tmpact ol the outbreak. will ensure that the Group will manage through the situation and will cmerge strongly.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A risk management Itamework is in place consisting of divisional compliance, risk and assurance boards that report monthly to
a (ilobal Compliance, Risk and Assurance Board (" GCRAB™). The GCRAR has as its key objectives the following:

+  Drive focus on the achievement of top grade compliance

¢« Owersee, test. challenge and provide mput mio mtiztives and activities that are mlegral to delivering top grade
compliance

+  Filter and prioritise new 1deas for improving compliance and managing enterprise risks

*  Monitor adherence (o all statutory compliance measures and requirements across the Group

*  Reeeive and consider owtput from any Divisional Compliance, Risk and Assurance (rroups

+  ldenuty und evaluate all significant enterprise risks and ensure thev are appropriately owned and managed

*  Ensurc that all key stakeholders are aligned in pursuit of the achievement of top grade compliance

The B3eard is responsible for overseeing the framework. In addition, 2019 saw the Giroup establish an internal audit function.
The most significant nisks are described below.

- Natural catastrophes

The global economy has been and remains aflected by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Group™s management are actively engaged
on a dailly basis in supporting current and future students, and are following public health guidance 1 cach of the territories in
which 1t operates. {t 15 not currently possible to accurately determine how long the pandemic and associated disruption wili
continue, and theretfore the consequent financial impact on the Group. Seme students have delaved. m some cases, cancelled
their studies as a result of the outbreak. The Group 1s keeping its resource levels and investments under elose review in order to
respond as flexibly as possible to the situation as 1t evolves. The Board 15 conlident that 1ts strong [Tnaneial and market position,
together with 1ts proactive management of the impact of the outbreak, will ensure that the Group will manage through the
sitaation and will emerge strongly. The Dirceters” going concern assessment s detailed 1n the Strategic Report on page 6.

- Economiec, market and trading risks

Tndustry and political risks

If foreign direct investment in emerging markets were 1o slow down or there were to be political uncertainty in source markets,
demand for a loreign-cducated. Inglish-speaking workforce may decline. The Group's students join from over 140 countries
worldwide. which provides a degree of mitigation against these risks.

- The UK future relationship with the EU, visa frameworks and immigration policy

The Group’s ability o recruit international students o its programmes depends on the ability of those students to procure visas.
Study Group engages proactively with Government agencies in discussions on visa poliey and lrameworks and continually
monitors students” processes through training agents m markel.

With regards to the European Union (BT it is unclear what the [uture status will be of students from outside of the United
Kingdom (UK. but within the UL THowever, the number of student weeks™ taught to U students in the UK business represents
less than 1% of total weeks across the Group and therefore management consider the associated risk to the Group 1o be low,

- Contract risks

['miversity partners

The Group maintains refationships in the torm of contractual agreements with its university partners. It works elosely with these
universily partners to ensure that 1t maintains a good relationship and 1s adhering o the terms of ns contractual asrangeme nts

Agent relationships
The Group relics on a global network of education agents to reeruit its international students and market 1ts programmes. The

managenient structure is designed to ensure that the Group manages its agent relationships etfectively and 1t constantly reviews
its approach to ensure that i1t is able to continuously improve in this area.

- Regulatory oversight

The majority of our partnerships are subject to regulatory compliance and are overseen by independent third party repulators.
The Group 1s committed to assuring adherence to its regulatory obligations and. beyond that, achieving top grade compliance.
All of our centres, colleges. and camnpuses are operated by appropriately qualified personnet and. where deenwed appropriate.
central staff, including internal audit. are emploved to review compliance with regulatory requirements and, where possible.
drive continual improvement.

(i) Student weeks taught represents the number of weeks in which a single student ig 1aught in one of its courses or subjects.
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Financial position

The CGroup has a leverage covenant attached to its term loans. The required leverage ratio reduces over time and therefore in
order 1o meet the covenant. the Group musi continue 1o deliver growth in consohdated EBITDA. The Group monitors its
covenant requirements on a regular basis 10 ensure that it has time to take mitigating action in the event ol a projected reduction
in 1ts leverape ratio. The impaet that Covid-19 has had on the business and its financial position, and consequently on the
Directors” going concern assessment is detatled in the Strategic Report on page 6.

Refer to the Directors” Report tor discussion on the Group's foreign currency and liguidity risk.

Business systems risks

The Group relies on information technology svstermns and its enline platform to operate its websites, facilitate student enrolment
online, deliver its programmes and maintain cost-etficient operations. In common with many businesscs. the CGroup's
mformation technology svstems and online platform could be impacted by interruption from both internal and external threats
In order to mitigate these risks. Study Group's production U] svstems are housed and backed up appropriately to mimimise the
tisk of eatastrophie failure. All svstems are monitored for environmental factors and system performance by a dedicated team
of protessionals.

Reputational risk

The Group’s reputation could be adversely affected by its ability 1o adequately update and expand the content of its existing
programmes and develop new programmes, as well as the quality and integrity ol its curricula. teaching staff or programme
facilities. The Group continuously reviews its operations to ensure that it is abie o respond to and mrtigate any reputational
risks.

Litigation risk

It commeon with many other businesses, from tme to time, the Group 18 subject to litgation. The occurrenee of matenial litigation
could have an adverse effect on uts reputation and [inancial results in the event of an untas ourable outcome. The Group employvs
mternal counsel and retains outside counsel to provide advice in the event of any Litigation.
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Section 172 of the Companies Act 2016
The Board 1s {uliv aware of its duty 1o promote the success of the Company pursuant to Section 172 of the Companies Act 2016,
Consequently. cach Director must act in a way s/he considers, in good {aith, would be most likely to promote the success of the
Compuny tor the benelitof ils members as a whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst other matters) to:

+  the likely consequence of any decision m the long term

*  the interests ol the company 's emplo ces

*  the need to foster the company s business relationships with suppliers. customers and others

+ the impact of the company s eperations on the community and the environment

»  the desirabilits of the company maintaiming a reputation lor high standards of busmess conduct

*  the need to act fairly as belween members of the company.

The Board understands the business can only grow and prosper i 1t respects the views of students, University Partners. suppliers,
and sharcholders to whom the Board is accountable. The Board secks to align the Company’s strategic direction to the
sharcholders™ long-tenm aspirations {or sustainability, growth, diversification and investment.

The Board has safeguards in place to ensure the long term implications of decisions are bemg considered. Regular five vear
planning atlows the Company to preserve the value of the business over the long term and whilst there are internal boards that
have delegated authority o review long term consequences, the Board conduets an appropriate fevel ol due diligence where
required. The GURAIR. as detined on page 8. maintains a monthly dashboard that indicates a rating lor various seclors of the
business.

The development of the Group's strategy under the Board's direction (as stated on page 7) sets a target for the Group to become
the leading provider of international education by driving suceess {or the Group's students and partners. The Board ensures there
15 clear dialogue with stakcholders about the Group™s vision through communications such as weekly newsletters. social media
posts (Workplace) and presentations by members of the global executive and senior leadership teams. The Directors consider
feedback from the stakeholders m reviewing progress ol and aiding principal decisions m relation to future strategy .

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the | irectors have considered the health and safety of both students and staft 1o be of paramount
importance, leading to a number of specific actions:
+  Movig {3,000 students online and creating an environment where the majority ot stalf were able to work from home.
+  Where centres have re-opened the directors have ensured they comply with the refevant Covid-19 guidelines.
»  The Directors have also provided support o employees working from home in terms of ensuring a high level of stafl
engagement comprising regular online global town hall meetings, supported by many other local and regional meetings.
»  The organisation ot regular enline student and emplovee surveys as a method of gathering feedback tom both groups.
»  The Group continues to allow employees to benetit from various government backed schemes to help safeguard roles.

The Irectors have also recognised the threat to the Group's data and information svstems ereated by remote working and have
engaged additional Il support o provide enhanced salepuards in this arca. The financial impact of the pandemic on the business
and consequently on sharcholders has been outlined 1n page 6 of the Strategic Report.

The Bourd recogmses that whilst promoting the suecess of the Company for the benelit ol the sharchoelders 1s paramount, the
interests of other stakcholders including the workforee, students. agents and partners is also erucial. The Board coutinues to
cngage with the worklorce and has taken into consideration their interests through annual policy reviews, engagement survevs.
an online HR serviee portal and the mtroduction of self-service career development platforms. Also refer io the emploviment
policies section within the Directors” report on page 12, Students are encouraged to provide feedback to the Company and alse
have roll on sub-committees that ultimately [eed up to the Board. Agents are surveved for therr feedback. The relationship with
university partners are maintained through frequent steering/management meetings.

The Board is committed to high standards of ethical conduet, social responsibility, community engagement and environmental
sustamability. It currently achieves this through its mmplementation of’ Group poelicies, trammg and by ensunng the wellare of
stidents and statl 1s maintained. The Board reviews further wavs 10 address these commitments on a regular basis. The Board
has continued o create a positive environmental and soeial impact with the "Building Futures™ initiative wineh this vear has
focused on fundraising o help reconstruet schools in Bangladesh. Refer to “Charitable contributions” on page 13 for [urther
detail on this mnitiative.

Omn behall of the Board ol Directors

E Lancaster
Director
11 December 2020
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General [nformation

s Global Topeo Limmted (“the Company '), formally Surrey Topeo Limited, is a holding company registered in England and
Wales with the Company number 11827427 The Thirectors present their report and the audited consolidated {inancial staterments
for 3G Global Topeo Limited “the Company™ and its subsidianes, together “the Group ™ or “Study Group”. for the period ended
31 December 2019

Principal Activities
Study Group is a leading provider of international education. It delivers its University Partnerships programmes o mtemationa)
students from over 140 countries.

The subsidiarics and asseciated undertakings of the Group in the period. including, these registered overseas. are hsted in Note
13 to the financial statements,

Ultimate Parent Company
In the view of the Directors. the ulimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Ardian LBO Fund V1 B S.LL.P.. 4 compans
incorporated in France.

Result and Dividends

The Group loss for the seven month reporting peried alter taxation ameunted to £24.9 nullion ineluding discentinued operations
and a loss after taxation of £22.5 mullion for continuing operations. OF the Group loss for the period. no loss 1s attributable to
non-controlling interests. The Directors do not recommend pavment of a dividend.

Business Review and Future Developments

The information contained in the Strategic Report constitutes the review of the Group's business. [t also contains details of
expeeted future developments in the business of the Group, information about expenditure and keyv performance indicators used
bv management.

Directors
The persons who were Direclors at any time during or since the end ol the financial period are listed below: detls ol the
Directors and their background are set out on pages 14 1o 13:

K Burnetl, Sir (appointed 18 June 2019)

R Kugler (appointed 1 July 2019)

I3 Ladriere {appointed 31 May 2019)

I Laneaster (appeointed 31 May 2019

F lattle (appoeinted 14 February 2019)

O Personnaz (appointed 14 Februan 2019)

M Van Cauwenberge {gppointed 31 May 2019)
N Williams (appointed 31 May 2019)

B Witcher ¢appointed 31 May 2019

Dircctors’ Indemnities

The Company mainlains liabilily tnsurance or its Directors and ofticers. The Company has also provided an indemnity for its
Directors. which is a qualitying third parly indemnily provision lor the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, This indemmity
bas been in place throughout the tinancial period and is in place as at the date of this report.

Financial Instruments

The Group's finaneial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and Haguid resources. and various items. such as trade debtors and
trade creditors that arise directly from its operations. The Group's financial liabilitics comprise borrewings. trade creditors and
other ereditors, the main purpose of which 1s 1o raise finance for the Group's operations. The CGroup alse has linancial asscts
comprising cash, trade and other debtors.

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no speculative trading in financial ins truments
shall be undertaken,

T'he main nisks arising from the Group's lnaneial mstruments are mnterest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency

risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing cach ol these risks and thev are summarised below. These policies
have been reviewed and remain unchanged.
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Interest rate risk

The Group's primary exposure to market interest rates relates to the Group's long-term borrowing obligations. The risk of the
Group being exposed to movement 1 interest rates is partially mitigated through the use of different curreney loans in Pound
Sterhing and Australian Dollars with difTerent variable rate basis of LIIBOR and BBSY. The interest rates currently applicable 10
this variable rate debt are LIBOR for Pound Sterling loans and BBSY tor Australian Dollar loans plus 6%. For the rolling credit
facility the margin is set at 4 75 % 1The Group also mayv at times hold cash and cash cquivalents which earn interest at a variable
rate. The current banking arrangement has interest rate floors in place for both GBP (0.3% [LIBOR) and AUD (1.3% BBSY)
which impacts the interest rates the Group is exposed to and the Group utihses interest rate cap agreements to manage and
mutigate its exposure to changes in interest rates.

In August 2019, the Group entered into two interest rate cap agreements to cap the floating interest rates on a 6-monthly basis
on 30% ot the GBP (£37.5 nullion) and 30% of the AU term loans ($107.3 million) until 30 August 2022, covering 50% of
the Group's total loans. The Group will continue to regularly monitor and sensitise interest rate risk and will consider additional
interest rate arrangements 1o manage and mitigate 1ts exposure 1o changes in mterest rates 1if thus is considered appropriate.

As part of the Group's regular review of interest rate risk. the Group is aware of and has considered the future ehimination of
LIBOR. [t is currently considered there is no significant risk around this elimmation as the agreements in place for the long-term
herrowing obligations have agreed terms that account for any unavailability of LIBOR rales.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will defauit on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
This risk 15 nutigated by agents and students generally paving tuition fees prior to course commencement.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework tor the management of the Group s short, medium and long-term tunding and liquidity management
requirements. 'he Croup manages liquidity risk by mamntaining adequate cash reserves, banking fucilities and reserve borrowing
facilities. bv continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash [lows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities. The Group actively monitors compliance with its covenant relating to the term loans. Note 21 includes detail of
additional undrawn faeilities that are available o the Company and the Group. Also reler 1o page 6 for specitic consideration
given to liquidity with respest 1o the going concern assessment.

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions deneminated m foreign currencies, hence experiences translational and transactional
exchange rate exposures. The Group is mainly exposed to movements between Pound Sterling and Australian Dollars/US
Dollars. I'BITDA for the peried was generated as tollows: 45.5% in Pound Sterling: 86.0% 1n Australian Dollars. (22 8%) m
Singapore Dollars, (6.1%) in US Dollars and (2.6%) other. The transaction risk is mitigated by revenues being billed in the
curreney where the services/operating costs are delivered/ineurred.

The largest elements of the Group external debt, being its term loans, are deneminated 30% in Pound Sterling, and 50% in
Australian Dollars. It hedges the foreign exchange exposure on the Austrahian Dollar term loan using a net myvestment hedge
{see Note 21). In addition, its leverage ratio (upon which its bank loan covenant comphance is caleulated) is impacted to a certain
extent by movements in foreign exchange rates: however the impact on EBITIDA and net debt will to a certain extent offscl and
is something management regularly monitors and sensitises. [ continues to review whether 1t would be beneficial to take out a
foreign curreney hedge to mitigate this risk,

Employment Policies

The Group's employvment policies are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that thev remain effective. The policies are
designed to promote a collaborative working environment, free from diserimination which supports the reeruitment and retention
of effective emplovees. Study Group promotes equal opportunity and the avoidance of diserimination. by treating individuals
cqually and with fairness at all times when making empleyment decisions. The Group achieves this by reaching objective
solutions based on merit, and ensuring that any unjustifiable barriers are removed. Statf are encouraged to raise any matiers that
are important to them within the workptace, in order to ensure that they are provided with appropriate levels of support.

It 1s the peliey of the Group to follow equal opportumity emplovment practices and these nclude the full consideration of
emplovment prospects for the disabled. Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fullv considered, bearing
in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concemed. Ttis the policy ol the Group that the training, carcer development and promotion
of disabled persons should, as far as possible. be identical with that of other emplovees. Arrangements are madc, wherever
possible. for retraining emplovees who become disabled. to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their
aptitudes.
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The Group places importance on the contributions to be made by all emplovees to the progress o the Group and aims to keep
them informed by the use of formal and informal communications as well as the Group's mntranet site. email. employee tforums
and newsletters, Via these mediums. emplovees are made aware of the financial and econormue tactors affecting the performance
of the company. as well as encouraging our individuals to fulfil their potential and to build positive working relatienships within
a fourishing and dvnamic environment. The Group also incentivises certain role’s performance through various bonus and other
reward sy stems relevant to their level and rele. Al balanced views are welcomed. and 1t routinely eelebrates diversity across our
global workforce. students and partners. Refer to the 5172 report on pages 10 tor details on how the Board of Directors engage
with emplovees and take into account their interest swhen making kev business decisions.

Political Contributions
Neither the company nor anv of its subsidiarics made any political donations or incurred anv political expenditure during the
period.

Business Relationships
The Directors have had regard to the need to toster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
as discussed in the 5172 report on page 10.

Charitable Contributions

During the period. the Group made donations ot £16,600 (the Group”s subsidiaries made Full Year donations ot £38,000 in 2019
and £44.000 in 2018) to its charitable partner, Plan International, which strives to advance children’s rights and equality for pirls
all over the world. The Group's partnership with Plan International. known as “Building IFutures’ vests in cducational
mifrastructure projects in developing countries. and aligns with its mission to educate students from cvery corner of the plobe,

Continuing the partnership’s history, the donation made 1 the vear was utilised to fund a progect in the Kurigram district of
Bangladesh. The project aim is to provide aceess to safer education to 1080 girls, 1.320 bovs and 128 teaching and education
staft through the rehabilitation of eight schools in the district. Starting in July 2018, the two-vear project alms to raise a total of
£200.000 from donations trom staff and students. and match funding tfrom Studv Group. This target 1s on track to be achieved
by March 2020.

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. with strong, net assets ol £306.7 million. The impact that
Covid-19 has had on the bustness and consequently on the Directors” going concern assessnient is detailed in the Strategic Report
on page 6. Whilst there is considered to be a material uncertainty which mav cast signiticant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern due to a forecast fmancial covenant breach as outlined on page 6, the Direclors consider that anv
[mancial covenant breach in the next 12 months [tom the date of these financial statements 1s laghly unlikely duc to an agreement
reached with the Group's lenders that includes the setting aside of this covenant for a period that exiends beyvend the next 12
months. subjeet to final legal documentation. The Directors therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis in the financial
statements and have coneluded that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group will have adequate resources
to continue m operational existence tor the Foresceable future.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events between the balance sheet date and the date the financial statements were 1ssued are disclosed m Note 30 of the
consolidated financial statements and Note 8 of the parent company tinancial statements. The impact that Covid-19 has had en
the business and consequently on the Directors” going concern assessment 1s detatled in the Strategic Report on page 6.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor
Lach of the persons who is a Director at the date of approvat of this annual report confirms that:
¢ so far as the Direetor is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and
»  the Director has taken alt the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make imself/hersell aware
of any relevant audit information and to cstablish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and sheuld be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

N Williams
Director
11 December 2026
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The Directors include the following individuals. being a balance of executive Directors and non-exceeutive Directors:

Emma Lancaster

Chief Exceutive Officer,

Study Group

Fmma Lancaster was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Study Group in September 2018, having served as Chiel Financial
Officer since April 2013,

Ms Lancaster was CFO of SHL Group Ltd for 11 vears, during which time it was both a public company listed on the London
Stock xchange and private equiry backed Prior 1o SHL. she was Director of Finance and Busiess Development at The Rank
Group ple. Ms Lancaster's early career was at Arthur Andersen in a variety of both client-lacing and internal roles in the Global
Corporate Finance group.

Ms Lancaster has a BA (Ions) in Zoology [rom Oxford University,

Nick Williams

Chief Financial Otficer

Steecdv Group

Nick joined Study Group i Octeber 2018 as Chief Financial OfTicer and was appointed 1o the Board on the same day.

Nick began his linance career at KPMCG. and prior to joining Study Group was finance leader tor a number of growing,
international businesses. Most recently he was CFO of JacTravel. a global B213 travel provider. Previous businesses mcluded
Masternaut. Truflo International and Biecompatibles. Nick alse serves as Non-lixecutive Director of Cambridge Scientific
Innovations.

ITe has a BA (Hons)y in History frony the University of Kxcter. and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Professor Sir Keith Burnett FRS

Vice-Chair (Acadenuce)

Study Group

Prafessor Sir Keith Burnett FRS is an eminent seientist who was formerly the Head of the Division of Mathematical, Physical
and Lile Sciences at The University of Oxford. e also worked as a physicist in the United States and at Imperial College in
l.ondon belore spending two decades at Oxlord and then 11 vears as the President and Viee -Chancellor of The University of
Shettield.

In addition to his role with Study Group, Sir Keith is Chair of the Nuttield Foundation - the charitable trust established in 1943
Leord Nuftield, the founder of Morrts Motors. which aims to improve social well-being by {unding research and innovation
projects in education and social policy, and building research capacity in scienee and social science. {e 1s also the Chair of the
Academic Counetl of the Schmidt Science Fellows in partnership with the Rhodes Trust in Oxtord, a glebal programme 1o
support exemplary interdiseiplinary science in partnership with the world's leading universitics. He has served as President of
the UK. Seience Couneil, as a trustee of the Roval Socicty and as a member of the Prime -Minister's Advisory Council on
Seienee and Technology.

A speaker ol Mandarin Chinese. Sir Keith has also been a significant leader of seientific and cducational partnership between
the UK and China. In 2014 and 2016 he was given an Award for Outstanding Personal Achievement by the People’s Republic
of China for his contribution to the understanding of Chinese language and culture. Sir Keith was the co-founder of the award-
winning #WeArelntemational campaign which welcomes international students and scholars to the UK, now supported by over
100 UK universities, education providers and businesses and led by the UK. Council for Intemational Student Allairs. 1le was
awarded a knighthood 1n 2013 for services to Science and Higher Jiducation.

Ralph Kugler

Non-tixecutive Chairman

Ralph has worked on a number of private equity deals. in a4 number ot different scctors. He currently chairs Williams Tea Tag,
an Advent International investiment. and is Independent Director of Keter, a BC Partners investment. He also chairs an exciting
early stage business. Headbox.

Ralph has been invelved in a number of education activities in recent vears. tle is Board Trustee on the largest primary school
MAT. He was chair of the Advisory board of a4 leading University business school. recently stepping down alter 10 vears on the
board. Until 2018, he was Chairman of Cognita. the global K12 schools organisation, with over 70 schools worldwide.

Ralph spent 23 y ears at Unilever, and has lived and worked in S Africa, Brazil, Malavsia, Thailand and Belgrum. as well as the

UK. e rose to become executive 1irector on the maim beard of Unilever. He has also been a Director of Intercontinenal [otels.
and was [Board advisor on the main board of Mars. Incorporated.
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Ralph was appointed Commander of the Roval Order of the Direkgunaborn, a Thai ros al honour. in 1999

Olivier Personnaz

Ardiam

Olivier is & Managing 12irector based in the London office at Ardian. Prior to joining Ardian in 2011, he was a Principal at
Apax Partners in the business and financial services team. Previouslv, Mr. Personnar worked in Paris as a management
consultant with MeKinsey & Company . [He graduated as an Ingineer from Eicole Centrale Paris. Currently sits on the board of
PIRT and SFAM.

Bruno Ladriére

Ardicm

Bruno has been a Managing IDirector with Ardian since 2002, Ile was previously a Director at PAI Partners. He has extensive
mvestment experience 1n the tood, chemicals. industnials and healtheare sectors. Bruno has worked in the pharmaceutical
industry with Rhone-Poulence. in management consulting with Corporate Decisions and in investment bankig with Triago. [le
qualified as a Medical 1Joctor and reeeived an MBA from 'he Wharton School. Currently sits on the board of Envision Pharma
Ciroup, inula. DR'1 and Sohma.

Edward Little

Ardian

Fidward Little 1s based in the London oflice of Ardian. Prior to joming Ardian in 2018, Mr. Little worked at TPG Capital where
he focused on the consumer and business services scctors. Previously, Mr. Little worked at LHIIG Capital and began his carcer as
an investmenlt banker at Rothschild in Londen. Mr. Litle 15 a graduate of the London School of Economics.

Benjamin Witcher

Ardicr

Benjamin Wilcher joined Ardian in 2015 within Ardian's Buvout team in London. Prior (o joining Ardian, he spent two vears in
the iLeveraged inance & Sponsors Group at Credit Suisse.

Michael Van Cauwenherge
Ardian
Michael Van Cauwenberge joined Ardian in 2019 as an Analy st within the Buy oul Team in London.

The Glebal Executive Team

The GLT 15 responsible for the day to dav management of the Group™s affairs. 1t 15 led by the Group™s CEO. Emma Lancaster.
All members of the 1cam have extensive experience in. and in-depth knowledge of. the cducation seetor or the function that they
lead. The current members of the GET and roles are as follows:

Imme Lancaster. Chict' Fxeeutive Otficer

Nick Williams, Chiel I'inancial Officer

Gordon Bull. Chiet Legal Officer

Alex Chevrolle, Managing Dircetor, ANY,

Anthony Claridge, Chiet Information Officer

Mike Fverett, (Global Delivery Director, UK & Europe

Nikki Hall, Chief People & Transformation Officer

Robert Morgan, Global Chiel Operating Otficer

James Pitman, Managing Director. Development UK & Europe
Manoj Shetty. Chief Revenue Officer

Dr Mark Cunninglen, Exceutive Director, UK & Furope (appointed 28 February 20200

,._.
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$G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responstble for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements tor each financial vear. Under that law the Directors have
clected to prepare the group financial statements n accordance with International I'inancial Reporting Standards ([FRSs) as
adopied by the Furopean Union and the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Aceepted Accounting Practice (UJnited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). including I'RS 101 ~“Reduced
Disclesure Framework ™,

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless thev are satisfied that thev give a true and
Tair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the prolit or loss of the company [or that period.

In preparing the parent company [inanesal statements, the Directors are required 1o:
+  select suntable accountimg polictes and then apply them consistently:
»  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
»  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to anv material departures disclosed
and explained in the [inanctal statements: and
»  prepare the financial stalements on the going concern basis unless 1t is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue n business.

In preparmg the group tinancial statements. International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

«  properly select and apply accounting policics:

+  present mnformation. mcluding accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant. reliable, comparable and
understandable information:

»  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specitic requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity s {inancial position and
financial performance: and

+  make an assessment of the company s ability (o continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sulficient 1o show and explain the company’s
trunsactions and disclose with reasonable accuraey at any tune the financial position of the company and cnable them to ensure
that the fmaneral statements comply with the Companies Act 2000, They are also responstble for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hencee tor taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection ol fraud and other wrregularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity of the corporate and financial mmformation mcluded on the
company s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may

differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Om behalf of the Board of 1irectors

N Williams
Dircetor
11 December 2020
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5G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinien
In our opmion:

» the financial statements of SG Global Topeo Limited (the “parent company ') and 1ts subsidiaries (the “group™) give &
true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company *s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the
group’s loss for the period then ended:

= the group linancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Luropean Union:

*  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting, Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework ™ and

»  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements ot the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
*  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:
« the consolidated statement of tfinancial position:
»  the consolidated statement of’ changes in equity:
« the consolidated cash flow statement:
+  the related notes to the financial statements 1 to 30:
+ the parent statement of fnancial position:
= the parent statement ot changes in equity: and
+  the related notes to the parent company financial statements 1 to 8.

The financial reporling framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial stalements 1s appheable law
and 1FRSs as adopted by the European Union. The [inancial reportimg framework that has been applied i the preparation ol the
parent company {mancial statements s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards. including IFinancial
Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law  Our
responsibilitics under those standards are further deseribed in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
seetion of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK. including the I'inancial Reporting Council's (the *FRC™s™) Ethical Standard. and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1 in the {inancial statements. which indicates that the Directors have reached an agreement with the
Group's lenders that ineludes the setting aside of the single financial covenant related 1o the Group™s term loans for a period that
extends beyvond the next 12 months, and incorporaling a commitment [rom Ardian to provide a capital injection of up to £30m
if required. [ the agreement to set aside the covenant with the lenders had not been reached, a financial covenant breach resulting
m the facilitics becoming repavable from June 2021 would otherwise have been forecast. Towever. the agreement with the
Group's lenders is still subject to final legal documentation at the date of approval of the financial statements. As stated in Note
1, these cvents or conditions, along with the other matters as sct forth in Note 1 to the [inancial slatements, indicate that a malterial
uncertainty exists that may casl significant doubt on the Group’s and Company s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified i respect of this matter.

Conclusions refating ¢o going concern
W are required by 1SAs (1TK) to report in respeet ol the Following matters where:
» the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the inancial statements 15 not appropriate:
or
= the direetors have not disclosed in the financial stalements any identified material uneertaintics that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s or the parent company s ability to continue (0 adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authornsed tor issuc.

We have nothing, to report in respect of these matters.

Other information

The dircelors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon. Our opinion on the financial stalements does not
cover the ather information and. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form ol
assurance conclusion thercon
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In conneetion with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing se.
consider whether the other intformation 1s materiatly inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears lo be materially misstated. I we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent matenal
musstatements. we are required 1o determine whether there 1s a material misstatement in the financial statements or a matenal
misstatement of the other information. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there 15 a material
misstaiement of this other information. we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibititics of directors

As explained more fullv in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responstble tor the preparation ot the
linancial statements and tor being satistied that they give a true and fair view, and for such imernal control as the directors
determmne is necessar (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are Iree [rom material misstatement, whether due o
fraud or error.

In preparing the [nancial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company 's ability to
contimue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis ol
aceounting unless the directors either intend (o liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operalions. or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
musstatement. whether due to fraud or errer, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of agsurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
nusstatenient when it exists. Misstatements ¢an arise {rom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregale. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decistons of users taken on the basis of these tinancial
slatenments.

A turther description of our responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
ww o [re org ub/auditorsresponsibilities. This deseription torms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the information given in the strategic report and the directors” report for the financial period for which the [inancial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and
= the strategic report and the dircctors” roport have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and thewr environment obtained in the
course of the audit. we have not identified any matertal misstatements in the strategic report or the directors” report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o report in respect of the following matlers if, in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company , or teturns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us: or
= the parent company linancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
+  certain disclosures of direetors” remuneration specified by law are not made: or
= woe have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of these matters

Use of our report

This report is made solcly to the company s members, as a body | in accerdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companices Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state 1o them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the tullest extent permitted by law. we do not accepl or assume
responsibility 1o anvone other than the company and the company’s members as a body. for our audit work. [or this report. or
tor the epinions we have formed.

HeloA ?smiae

Helen Burridge (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on hehalf of Deloitte LLP, Statutory Auditor, London, United Kingdom
15 December 2020

I8



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the period ended 31 Decermnber 2019
Before  Exceptional

Exceptional And Total

and Other  Other ltems

Ttems (Note 8)

2019
On a continuing operations basis:

Note £m fm £m
Revenue 2 148.6 - 148.6
Sales and marketing costs (39.8) - (39.8)
Dehvery costs (55.8) - (55.8)
Admimistrative expenses (30.5) (10.2) ($0.7)

EARNINGS BEFORE DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION,
IMPAIRMENT, NET FINANCING COSTS AND TAXATION 225 (10.2) 12.3
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS:

Impairment (0.1) (0.2) {0.3)
Depreciation and amortisation (23.7) - (23.7)
OPERATING LOSS 3 (1.3) (10.4 (11.7)
Finance income 4 0.3 - 0.3
Finance costs 5 144 (0.7) {15.1)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (15.4) (11.1) (26.5)
Taxation 6 4.0 - +.0
L.OSS FOR THE PERIOD AFTER TAXATION FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (-4 aLn - 2z3)
Discontintied operations: 7
Lossg atter tax for the period frTom
discontinued operations, net of tax (1-8) (0-6) 24
LOSS FOR THE PERTOD AFTER TAXATION (13.2) (11.7) (24.9)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit ar loss in
subseguent periods (net of taxi:
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations (4.2) - (4.2)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF

(4.2) - (4.2)
TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (17.4) (L7 (29.1)

The accompanyving notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUFP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2019

31 December 2019

Note im
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSLTS
Goodwill 9 287.7
(nher intangible asscts 10 +408.6
Property, plant and equipment i1 26.1
Right-of-use assets 12 117.4
Interests 1 jomt ventures 13 0.3
Finance lease receivables 14 4.7
Delerred tax assets 13 20.1
Oither fnancial assets 0.1
8635.0
CURRENT ASSETS
Finance lease receivables 14 0.8
Current lax assets 0.3
Trade and other recervables 16 58.1
Cash and cash equivalents 44.0
103.2
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other pavables 17 80.0
Uncarned revenues I8 113.0
Current tax habihities 3.2
[.ease liabilities 19 16.2
Provisions 20 4.8
217.2
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (114.0)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 21 221.5
Delerred tax liabiltties 15 104.4
Provisions 20 5.2
[.easc liabilites 19 113.2
4.3
NET ASSETS 306.7
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 23 3348
Share premium reserve 23 1.0
Translatlon rescrve (4.2)
Accumulated losses (24.9)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 306.7

The financial statements and notes on pages 19 to 38 were approved by the Board of directors on 11 December 2020 and were
sipned on 1its behall by N. Williams. The accompanying netes torm an integral part of these Nnancial statements.

N. Williams, Director, SG Global Topco Limited, Registered no. 11827427
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$G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[or the period ended 31 December 2019

2019

Opening balance on incorporation

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income for the penod
Totlal comprehensive gain/(loss) for the period

[ssue of share capital

Balance at 31 December 2019

21

Ordinary Share  Translation Accumulated Total
Share Premium Reserve Losses Equity
(apital Reserve

Note £m £m £m fm
£m
- - - (249 24.9)
- - (4.2) - (+.2)
- - 41.2) (24.9) (29.1)
23 334.8 1.0 - - 335.8
334.8 1.0 (4.2) (24.9) 306.7




SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Tor the period ended 31 December 2019

The Group has clevted to present a stalement of cash flows that analyses all cash flows in total. ineluding both contnuing and

discontinued operations: amounts relating to discontinued operations are disclosed in Note 7.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[oss belore tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of right of use assets

Impairment of’ intangible assets

I'inance costs

Finance income

{.0ss on disposal of discontinued operations

Acquisition costs

Decrease m trade and other receivables
Decrease in unearned revenues
Decrease in provisions

Decrease in trade and other pavables

Acquisition costs

Interest paid and fnancing costs
Interest clenient of lease pavments
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
luterest received

Interest income on the net investment in the lease
Purchase of businesscs

Cash balances acquired on acquisition

Purchasc of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceweds on 1ssue ol shares

Proceeds (rom 1ssue ol loans

Peferred borrowing costs on new loans

Repavment of bank loans and other financing
Repavment of the principal pertion of the net investment in the lease
Repavment of the principal portion of the lease Lability

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase 1n cash and cash equis alents
Effeet of foreign exchange rate changes
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22

Note

~1

29

29
29
11

23

28

2019
£m

(289N

B
a
-1

(0.1
0.1
14.4
(0.5
0.6
6.0
155
607
(5.
(0.6)
(14.3
517

(6.0
(5.4)
(3.0)
{0.2)

37.1

0.1

02
(287 .3)
6.2
(6.8)
(3.7
(291.5)

335.8
232.8
(7.7)
(252.5)
0.5
(10.8)
2081

437
0.3
4.0
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Date of incorporation

SG Global Tepeo Limited (formerly Surrey Topeo Limited) was incorporated on 14 February 2019, It 1s a company limited by
shares and 15 incorporated, domiciled and registered in England and Wales. The compans name was changed from Surrey Topeo
Limited to SG Global Topeo Limited on 29 May 2019 The Group consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 11 December 2020

For the period ending 31 December 2019 the following subsidiaries of the Company were entitled 1o exemption ITom audit under
5479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies:

Subsidiary Name Companies House Registration Number
DU UK Intermediate Ltd 07285315
DU UK Management Serviees ].1d 07285370
EDU UK Topeo Lid 07285288
Study Group Holdings UK Ltd 05888001
Bellerbys TIK [id (formerly Study Group Lid) 04275123
Study Group Distance Learning Lid 07143464
SG Glebal Bideo Fid 11827693
SG Glebal Midee T.td 11827648
SG (rlobal Finee Ltd 11827369

Accounting policies for the period ended 31 December 2419
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below  These policies have
been consistently applied throughout the period. unless otherwise stated.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are based on the consolidated results of the SG Global Topeo Limited CGroup (“the Group™) Tor the
period to 31 December 2019, The parent entity was incorporated on 14 ebruary 2019 and the acquisition of the trading group
oceurred on 31 May 2019, thus the results reflect 7 months of trade.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordunce with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Furopean Union (IFRSs as adopted by the LiU), and the Compames Act 2006 applicable 1o
companies reporting under [FRS and [FRIC interpretations. This is the first set of financial statements for the Company. The
Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statermnents in accordance with RS 101: these are presented on
pages 59 o 63,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convennion. except {or financial assets and
financial tabilities (including derivative instruments)y at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, Il also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The arcas involving
a higher degree ol judgement or complexity, or arcas where asswmmptions and estimates are signilicant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 1.23.

Going Concern

At 31 October 2020 the Group lrad cash and cash equivalents of £29.8m. After consideration ol the impact of Covid-19 on the
business as discussed below. meluding the application of scenario and sensitivily analvsis, and the ongoeing support of the
Group’s majority sharcholder Ardian, there ts positive cash headroom on committed facilities throughout the poing concern
assessment period. This includes a commitment from Ardian to provide a capital injection of up to £30m it required, as part of’
an agreement that has been reached with the Group’s lenders. That agreement is subject to legal documentation. which is
currenily m the process ol beng tinalised

In making the going concern assessment, the 1irectors have taken into account the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group.
The Directors have prepared a series of trading performance forecasts in terms of the impact of the pandemic on the business.
The going concern assessment recognises the inherent uncertainty associated with any forecasting and the Directors believe that
the Group’s strong financial and market position, together with its proactive management of evolving market conditions

2

(8]



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D}

including closely managing costs and ensuring that liquidity 13 maintained with sulficient headroom, will ensure that the Group
will manage through the situation and will emerge strongly.

In an illustrative extrerne downside scenario for the purposes of stress-testing the Group's strong financial position. NSE lor the
first six month of 2021 could be over 50% lower than the same period in 2020, and NSE for the second six months of 2021 no
better than the comparable period m 2020 which was mpacted by Covid-19 betore cash resources would reach 7zero. Based on
current evidence available to the Directors at the date of this report. the assumptions in this scenario are considered to be highls
unlikelv. Therelore. under all reasonable downside scenarios modelled. and assuming the finalisation ol the agreement with the
Group's lenders as referenced above, the group has sutticient committed facilities,

The Group's term lean currently includes a single financial covenant requiring that the Group’s leverage ratio remains within
agreed limits. with which the Group was in compliance throughout the 3 ear and since the vear end. The agreement that has been
reached with the Group's lenders includes the setting aside ol this covenant for a peried that extends bes ond the next 12 months.
subjeet to tnal legal documentation, and incorporating the commitment {tom Ardian to provide a capital injection of up lo £30m
if required. As a result of a reduction in NSE in the second six months of 2020, as outlined 1 morce detail in the section above.
the “last 12 months EBITDA™ used in the covenant caleulation during the geing concem assessment period 1s expected to be
materiallv lower than it would have been belore Covid-19. If the agreement to set aside the covenant had not been reached with
the lenders. a linancial covenant breach resulting in the facilities becoming repavable from June 2021 would otherwise have
been torecast.

Given the above. the Board 1s confident that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources Lo continue to operate [or
the toresceable future. Because the agreement with the Group's lenders remains subject to final legal documentation at the date
ol approval of these financial statements. the Dircctors have concluded that these circunistances represent a material uncertainty,
which may cast significant doubt on the Comnpany s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and realise ils assels
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. However. because the Lhirectors consider that any financial covenant
breach in the next 12 menths from the date of thesc {inancial statements is highly unlikely due to the agreement reached, and
that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence lor the foreseeable Tuture,
they continue {0 adopt the going concern basis in the [inancial statemnents.

1.3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

Subsidiarics are entilies controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns trom its mvolvement with the entity and has the ability to allect those retums through its power over the entity. In
assessing control, the Group takes inte consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercrsable. The acquisition date
is the date on which control is transferred 1o the acguirer. The financial slatements of subsidiaries arc included in the consolidated
linancial statements from the date thal conirol commences until the date that control ceases. All mira-group transactions,
balances, income and cxpenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Joint Arrangements
A joint arrangement is an arrangement over which the Group and one or more third partics have joint control. These joint
arrangements are in tum classified as:
»  Joint ventures whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its asscts and
obligations for its liabilities: and
»  Joint operations whereby the Group has rights to the asscts and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.

Application of the equity method to joint ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are mitially recognised at cost. The
Giroup’s investment includes goodwill 1dentified on acquisition, net of anv accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity accounted
investees. from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control ceases. When the Group’s share of losses
exceeds its interest in an cquity accounted investee. the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recogmition of further
losses 1s discontinued exeept to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behall of an investee.
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
1.4 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable tor the sale of serviees in the ordinary course of the
Ciroup's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales taxes and discounts.

Revenue is recognised as follows, in accordance with the principles of IFRS 13:

a) Tuition revenue

Tuition revenue is generated from education courses provided to students and is recognised over time as the courses
are provided, with performance obligations being satisfied as the course is delivered. Discounts and bursartes given to
students are netted against tuition revenue. Pavments from students are due in aceordance with agreed pavment terms
for that particular course and education provider. Pre-pavments [or courses are treated as deferred revenue and
amortised over the duration of the course. Refunds will be granted to students in accordance with the agreed retund
policies for cach University partner, for example in exceptional circumstances such as relating to illness or bercavement,
or where Study Group has been unable to provide or complete teaching of a paid-for programme ol study.

b)  Accommodation revenue
Accommodation revenue s generaled {rom accommodation provided o students and is recogmsed over tme as it is
provided. Pavments from students are due in accordance with agreed payment terms tor the accommodation provided,
Pre-pavments tor accommodation are treated as deferred revenue and amortised over the duration of stayv. Retunds will
be granted to students in accordance with the agreed refund policies for cach University partner. for example
exceptional circumstances such as relating 1o 1llness or bereavement, or where Study (roup has been unable to provide
or complete teaching ol a paid-for programme of study.

¢) Matriculation or placement revenue
Matrnculation or placement revenue from University Partners 1s recogmised when the Group’s pertormance obligations
are met, which s the point at which matriculation or placement of’ the student 1s contirmed. The revenue is recognised
for all semesters and vears. with an estimate ol subsequent year amounts being made by taking into account average
progression rates. Payvment is due in accordance with agreed payment terms with that particular Universuty. Study
Giroup is entitled to pavment ence the student enrols on their course, and there is ne obligation for a retund should the
student fail to complete the course.

d) Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised in line with IFRS 15 and when the performance obligations have been met.

1.5 STUDENT ACQUISITION COSTS

Commisston and bonuses paid to third party agents, where the Group has a right 1o claw back the payments in the event the
student leaves before completion of their course, are deterred on the balance sheet and recognised over the same period as the
related student revenue. Pavments made where the Group has no recourse to claw them back are expensed as they are carned by
the third party

1.6 LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract 1s or comtains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right -ot-use
asset and « corresponding lease liability with respeet to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (delined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases ol low value assets (such as laptops, photocopiers.
small iems of oltice furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Ciroup recognises the lease pavments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis s more representative of the lime pattern in
which economic benelits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability 1s initially measured at the present value of the lease pavments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate impleit in the lease. It this rate cannot be readily determined. the Group uses its imcremental
borrowing rate.

o
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

[.casc payments mcluded in the measurement of the lease lability comprise:
+  Fixed lease pavments (including in-substance lixed payments). less anv lease incenlives receivable:
*  Variable lease pavments that depend on an index or rate. initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement
dute,
*  The amount expeeted to be pavable by the lessce under residual value guarantees:
*  The exercise price of purchase options. if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options: and
*  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.,

The lease liability 1s presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease hability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrving amount to reflect interest on the lease liablin (using the
effective interest methed) and by redueing the carrving amount to reflect the lease pavments made.

The Group remeasures the lease Hability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-ol-use asset) whenever:

+  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of excreise of a purchase optien, m which case the lease hability 1s remeasured by discounting the revised
lease pavments using a revised discount rate.

*  The lease payments change duc to changes 1n an index or rate or a change in expected pavment under a guaranteed
residual value. in which cases the lease hability 1s remeasured by discounting the revised lease pavments using an
unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a tloating interest rate, in which case
a revised discount rate 15 used).

= Alease contract 15 modified and the lease modification i1s not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liabilits is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified fease by discounting the revised fcase pavments using a
revised discount rate at the eftective date of the moditication.

The right-ol-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease pavments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives receis ed and any initial direct costs. They arce subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. At the end of cach reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is
anyv indication that a right-of-use asset may be impaired under TAS 36, If there is an indication of impairment. the asset will be
written down 1o its recoverable amount,

Whenever the CGrroup incurs an obligation lor costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset. restore the site on which it is ocated
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under [AS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset. the costs are included in the refated right-of-
use assel. unless those costs are incurred {o produce inventories.

Right-ol-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlving asset. [t a lease transfers
ownership of the underkying assct or the cost ol the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exereise a purchase
option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lite of the underlying asset. The
depreciztion starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-ot-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies TAS 36 o determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts tor any identified impairment loss
as deseribed in the "Property, Plant and Equipment” policey.

Varable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included 11 the measurement the lease labilitv and the right-ol-use
asset. The related pavments are recognised as an expense m the pertod in which the event or condition that triggers those
pavments oceurs and are included in the line “Other operating expenses™ in protit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and mstead aceount for anv jease and
associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has clected to apply this to leases of student
accommodation and motor vehieles only. For contracts thatl contain a lease component and one or more additional leasc or non-
leuse compenents. the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

The Group as lessor

Leases for which the Group 1s a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transter
substantially all the risks and rewards ol ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a tinance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

When the Group 1s an intermediate lessor. it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-
lease 1s classitied as a [inance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
meurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrving amount of the leased usset und recognised on
a straight-line basis over the Jease term.

Amounts due from lessees under lnance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount ol the (roup™s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income 1s allocated to accounting periods so as to retlect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Giroup’s net mvestment outstanding in respect of the leases.

1.7  EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS

Due to their matenial nature, certain exceptional and other non-trading or nen-recurring items have been classilied separately in
order to aid the understanding of the reader. Exceptional items comprise, inter alia, impairment charges. restructuring costs and
costs associated with material financing or acquisition transactions. Other items include strategic investments which comprise
of upfront imvestmenlts For the benefit of future vears, non-executive director fees. restructuring costs and unrealised TX loss that
the directors believe are beneficial to strip out when analvsing the underlving trading result for the period because these are
stems that are not dircetly linked to the trading business.

1.8  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions ol businesses are accounted for using the acquisition methad. The consideration transferred in 2 business
combination 1s measured at fair value. which is caleulaled as the sum of the acquisition-date tair values of asscts transferred by
the Group. labilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity mterest 1ssued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquirce. Acquisition-retated costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisttion date, the sdentifiable assets acquired and the liabilitics assumed are recognised at their Tair value at the
acepusition date, except that:
= deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employec benetfit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with TAS 12 and [AS 19 respectively:

Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum ot the consideration transterred over the net of the acquisition-date amounis ol
the identifiable assets acquired and the Hahilities assumed. H after reassessment. the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
wdentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the swm of the consideration transferred, the excess 15 recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration translerred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration 1s measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in [air value of the contingent consideration that qualily as measurement period adjustments
are adjusled retrospeetively. with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise Item additienal information obtained during the “measurcment peried” {which cannot exceed one vear [tom the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes 1n the lair value of the contingent consideration that do not gualilv as measurcment
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classitied. Contingent consideration that is classitied as
equily is not re-measured at subscquent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement 18 accounted for within cquity . Other
contmgent consideration is re-measured 1o fair value at subscquent reporting, dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination 1s incomplete by the end of the reporting period 1n which the combination
oceurs. the Group reports provisional ameunts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurernent period (sec above). or additional assets or labilitics are recognised. to reflect
riew information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, it known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
1.9 GOODWILL

{m acquisition ol a business, lair values are attributed o the 1dentifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabililies unless
the fair value cannot be measured reliably. in which case the value 15 subsumed into goodwill. Where fair values of acquired
contingent Habilities cannot be measured reliably, the assumed contingent liabilits is not recognised but 1s disclosed in the sume
manner as other contingent liabilities.

CGoodwill 15 tested annually lor impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Goodwill is allocated to CGU s for the purpose of impairment testing, with CGU's in line with the
reported operating segments. The allocation 1s made to those CGU™s or Groups of CGU’s that are expected to benefit rom the
business combination m which the goodwill arese identified according to operating segment. Goodwill is recorded in the
tunctional currency of the CGTI to which it refates.

1.10  INTANGIBLES

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible asscls acquired separately are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over their cstimated usetul lives.
The estimated wseful lite and amortisation methed 1s reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period. with any changes in
these accounting estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a husiness combination

Intangible asscts acquired in a business combination are identificd and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisty
the definition of an ntangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. Intangible asscts acquired i a business
cembination are recorded m the functional currency of the CGU to which they relate. Subsequent to inilial recognition at fair
value. intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and aceumulated
impairment losses al the balance sheet exchange rate. on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

The following usctul hives have been determined tor the intangible asscts acquired separately or in a business combination:

University Partnerships 30 vears

Brand 30 vears
Sottware 3-3 vears
Centre Contracls Life of contract
Course Developiment 3 vears

Internally-generated intangible asscts
An mternally -generated intangible asset arising from sottware and course development is recognised if, and only it all of the
following have been demonstrated:

*  the technical leasibilits of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

»  the intention to complete the mntangible asset and use or sell it

«  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset:

= how the inlangible asset will generate probable future economic benetits.

+ theavailability of adequate technical. financial and other resources to complete the development and o usc or sell the
intangible sset: and

+  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attribatable to the mtangible asset during s development,

The amount initially recognised for internally -penerated intangible assets 1s the sum of the expenditure imvurred from the date
when the intangible asset {irst meets the recognition eniteria listed above.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally -generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired scparately.

The following usetul lives have been determied for internally generated intangible assets:

Course Development 3 years
Soltware Development 3-3 years
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
1.11 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are shown at hustorical cost less accumulated depreciation and impatrment tosses. Cost meludes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to 1ts working condition for its mtended use.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. while major renovations and improvements are capitabised as fixed asscts
and depreciated over their estimated useful Hives.

Depreciation 1s provided at rates caleulated 1o write oft the cost or valuation of each asset. on a straight-line basis over its
expecled usetul life to their residual values. as follows:

Ireehield buildings - 30 vears
Fquipment - 2-10 v cars
[.euschold improvements ~ Term of lease
Assel Retirement obligations - Term of lease

Frechold land is not depreciated.
1.12 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life. for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Asscts that are subject o amortisation are reviewed for impairment when events or changes m circumslances
indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrving value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is considered to be the higher of value in use and fuir value less costs to
sell. In order to assess impatrment, assets are grouped into the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-gencerating units). Cash flows used (o assess impairment are discourted using appropriate rates taking mto account the cost
of capital and any risks relevant to those assets.

1.13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments
Finaneial assets and fisancial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balanee sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the msirument.

Financial assets

All linancial assets are normally recognised and de-recognised on a wrade date hasts where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial assct within the timeframe established by the market
concerned and are initially measured at fair value. plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at tar
value through protit and loss. which are initiallv measured at fair value. On de-recognition. however, where a specilic transaction
is entered inlo with a counlerparty thal is judged to carry a high eredit or liquidity nisk, then the Directors may determine that
de-recognition of the financial asset shall be based on settlement date rather than trade date. with any realised gain or loss taken
{o the income statement on date of settlement.

I“inancial assets that are within the scope of [FRS 9 are required to be classificd and measured subsequently at amortised cost.
[air value through other comprehenszive income (' FVIOCT Y or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL™) on the basis of the
(iroup’s business model for managing the linancial assets and the contractual cash ow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specitically:

+  debt mstruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to colleet the contractual cash {Tows. and that
have contractual cash 1lows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the prineipal amount outstanding, are
measured subsequently al amortised cost;

+  debt mnstruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the debt instruments. and that have contractual cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on
the principal amount cutstanding, are measured subsequently at FVTOCT: and

+  all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at FVTPLL.

Despite the foregoing. the Group mav make the following irrevecable election/designation at initial recognition ol a fimancial
asset:
+  the Group may irrevocably destgnate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOC] eriteria as measured
at YV'IPL 1f doing so climinates or sigatficanth reduces an accounting mismateh.

29



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

Effcctive interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest incomne
over the relevant peried. The effeetive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated {uture cash receipts (including all
fees and amounts paid or received that form an integral part of the etfective mnterest rate. transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected lile of the debt mstrument, or, where appropniate. a shorter pertod. Lo the net carrving amount
on initial recognition.

Income 1s recoguised on an effective interest basis tor debt instruments other than those financial assets ¢lassified as at FVIPL.

Classes of financial asset
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following eriteria are met
»  the asset is held within a business model whose objective 1s to collect the contractual cash tlows, and
+  the contractual terms give rise 1o cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest,

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payvments that are not gquoted 1 an active market are classified at
amortised cost. Trade and other recervables are measured at ameortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
mnpairment. Interest income is recognised by applving the effective interest rate, except for short-lerm receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial,

Financial assets at FUVTOCf

Financial assets at FVTOCT are stated al Lair value. with anv gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in other
comprchensive income.

Financial assets at F1TPI.

Finangial asscts al FVTPLL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the income
staternent. 'The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any dividend er interest camed on the finane ial
asset and 1s included in the “other gamns and losses™ Line item in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

IFinancial assets, other than those at FVTPLL. are assessed for indicators of impainment at each balance sheet date. In accordance
with [FRS 9 impatrment of lnancial assets 1s based on an expected credit loss (*T:CL™) model. The ECL model requires the
(rroup o account tor ECLs and changes m these LCLs at cach reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the financial asscts. Finuneial assets are impaired where there s objective evidence that. as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the tnancial asset. the estimated future cash flows of the mvestment have
been attected, IFRS 9 also requires current and future events to be considered when making an impairment assessment.

IFRS 9 requires the Group to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the htetime 12CLs 1if
the eredit risk on that (inancial instrument has inereased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument 15 a
purchascd or originated eredit impaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on a linancial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition (except tor a
purchased or eriginated credit impatred [inancial asset), the Group is required to measure the loss allowance for that financial
mstrument at an amount equal to 12 months ECLL. [FRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance
at an amount equal 1o lifetime TCL for trade receivables. contract assets and lease receivables in certain clreumstances.

For all [inancial assets, ineluding finance lease receivables. objective evidence of impairment could include.
+  sigmficant financial ditficulty of the 1ssuer or counterparty: or
»  default or delingueney in interest or prineipal payments: or
» it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation.

IFor certain categories ol financial asscl. such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impainnent on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portlolio of receivables could
inelude the Group’s past experienee of collecting pavments, an nerease in the number of delaved payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period. as well as observable changes in national or local cconomic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For tmancial assets carried al amortised cost. the amount of the impairment is the ditference between the asset’s carrving amount
and the present value ol estimated future cash flows. discounted at the financial asset’s original etfective interest rate.

The carrving amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss dircetly for all financial assets with the exception
ol trade receivables, where the carrving amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible. it 1s written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amoeunts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrving amount of the allowance account are recognised in the
slatement of comprehensive income

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group de-recognises a {inancial asset onlv when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when 1t
transfers the (inancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel to another entity. If the Group
neither translers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues (o control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained nterest in the asset and an assoctated lability for amounts it may have to pav. If the Group
retains substantiallv all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transterred financial asset, the Group continues to recogni se the
{tnanetal asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing, for the proceeds received.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCT is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income 1s reclassified from equity to prolit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity invesiment
designated as measured at FVTOCT is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
meome 1s subsequently transferred 1o retained earnings

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classilied as either [inancial liabilitics o1 as equity in accordance with the substance of the
comtractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity insirument is any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts ol an entity alter deducting all ol its liabilities.
Liquity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs,

Financial liabitities
Financial liabilites are classitied as either “Tinancial liabilities at 'VTPL™ or “other financial liabahities™.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured 1aitially al their fair values and. if not destgnated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher ot
*  the amount of the obligation under the contract. as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions. Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets: and
*  the amount initiallv recognised tess, where appropriale, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognilion policies set out above,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held tor trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL. on initial recognition.

A financial liability s elassilied as held for trading if:
* 1t has been incuwrred principally for the purpese of repurchasing st in the near term: or
*  on initial recognition it is part ol a portfolio of identified tinancial mstruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking: or
* itisa denivative that is not designated and cffective as a hedging mstrument.

A lnangial liabiline other than a financial lisbility held for trading may be designated as al FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
ariser or

*  the fnaneial liabslity forms part of & group of {inancial assets or fimancial Liabilties or both. which is managed and 115
performance 1s evaluated on a fair value basis, 1 accordance with the Group's documented risk management or
mvestment strategy and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis: or

» il forms part of a conlract containing one or more cmbedded derivatives and I'RS 9 Finaneial Instrunents permils the
cntire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as al FVTPL



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Iinancial liabilitics at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with anmv gains or losses ansing on re-measurement recognised in the
meome staterment. The net gan or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any interest paid on the financial liabilit
and 1s included in the ~other gains and losses™ line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilisics

Other financial liabihities. including borrowings. are mitiatly measured at fair vatue, net of transaction costs (ther inancial
liabilities arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the eflective interest method, with interest expense recognised on
an elfective vield basis,

The cffective interest method 1s a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a linancial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective nterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paxments
through the expected life of the financial Liability. or. where appropriate. a shorter period. to the net carrving amount on initial
recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when the Group’s obligations are discharged. cancelled or they expire

1.14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING
a)  Derivative finanaal instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at tuir value. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in protit or loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of anv resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

by Tair value hedges

Where a denivative financial mstrument 1s designated as a hedge ol variabifity in fair value of a recognised asset or Hability or
an unrecognised firm commitment, all changes in the tair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in the income
statement. The carrving value of the hedged item 1s adjusted by the change in fair value that 1s attributable to the risk being
hedged (even if it s nonnally carried at cost or amertised cost) and any gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised
immediately i the income statement (even i those gains would normally be recognised in reserves),

¢y Cash {low hedges

Interest rate swaps are held 10 manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as cash [ow hedges of tloating rate
borrowings. Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are eflective are recognised
directly m the slatement of changes m equity. Any ineftectiveness m the hedging relationships is mmcluded in the income
stiternent. The amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the ncome statement Lo match the recognition of the hedged item.

d)  lledge of a net investment

Grains ot losses on the hedging instrument relating o the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in the statement ol changes
inequity while any gains or losses relating to the meltective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation. the cumulative value of any such gams or losses recorded in equity is transierred to the statement of
profit or loss.

.15 PROVISIONS
Provistons are measured at the value of management™s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligalion
at the balance sheet date. I material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash tlows of the Group at

rates (hat reflect current market assessments of the time value of money.

Provisions for onerous conlracts are recognised when the Group believes that the unaveidable costs of meeting or exiting the
contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits expected Lo be received under the contract.

[¥3)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
1.16 TAXATION INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX
Corporation tax, where payvable, 1s provided en taxable profits at the current rate.

Deterred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balunce sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrving amounts for [Inancial reporting purposcs.

Deterred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carmny -forward ol unused tax asscts and unused ax
lesses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporan differences,
and the carrv-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carmving amount of deferred mcome tax
assels 18 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficiem taxable profit
will be available 1o allow alt or part of the deferred mcome tax asset to be utilised.

Deterred tax assets and habuities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the vear when the asset 1s realised
or the lability 1s settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Tax refating to tlems recognised directly m equity 1s recognised in cquity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been discounted.

1.17  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A disposal group qualities as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of. or is
classilied as held [or sale, and:

+  represents a separate major line of business or geographical area ot operations
< 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line ol business or geographical area of operations

Gr
+ s asubsidian acquired exelusively with a view (o resale

Discontinued operations are excluded trom the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or
loss alter tax from discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive income.

Additional disclosures are provided i Note 7. All other notes to the financial statements inelude amounts for continuing
operattons. unless indicated otherwisce.

1.18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand. deposits at all banks, other Liquid mvestments or funds with original maturitics
ol three months or less and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafts or loans where there is ne right of set oft are shown within
borrowings m currend or non-current liabilities on the balance sheet as appropriate.

1.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contvibution plans

During the peried the Group contributed to detined contribution pension schemes under which it pavs contributions based upon
a percentage of the members' basic salarv. The schemes are administered by trustees either appointed by the Group or clected
by the members.

Centributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the statement of comprehensive income according to the
vear in which they are pavable.

Emplovee feenve entitlements
Employee benelit provisions relate predominantly to annual leave and long service leave entitlements payvable to emplovees in
certain junsdictions.

1.20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shares issued are shown as share capital at nominal value. The premium reeeived on the issuance of shares in excess
of the nominal value is shown as share premium within sharcholders' equity.

o]
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
1.21 FOREIGN CURRENCY
a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items mmeluded in the financial statements of cach of the Group’'s entities are measured using the currency ot the primary
ceonomic environment in which the entity operates (“the lunctional currencs ). The consohidated financial statements are
presented in Pound Sterling, which i1s the Company s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

b)  Transactions and balances

‘Fransaciions denominaled in foreign currencies are recorded in Pound Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resuiting from such transactions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. except when deferred in equily as qualifying cash flow hedpes. Monetary assets and halihities denominated 1 foreign
currencies are (ranslated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet dute and any exchange differences are taken to the
slalement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating 1o foreign currency loans and other toreign exchange adjustments are included within
finance income and expenses

On consolidation meomes and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Pound Sterling using average rates that
existed during the accounting period. The balance sheets of toreign subsidiaries are translated into Pound Sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains or lesses arising on the re-ranslation of opening and closing net assets are
recognised 1n the statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in a foreign exchange translation reserve.

1.22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that mclude the effects of changes in foreign curreney exchange
rates. market interest rates. credit risk and its Hquidity position. ‘The Group has in place a risk management programnie that secks
to limit adverse effeets on the financial performance of the Group which is outlined in the Directors” Report.

The tasr values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a maturity of less than one vear are assumed to be approximate
to their book values.

1.23 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

[n applving the Group's accounting policies, which are deseribed in Note 1. the Directors are required to make judgements (other
than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumplions about the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical expericnee and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resukts
man ditler trom these estimates.

The cstimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revistons to accounting estimales are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised it the revision allects only that period. or in the period of the revision and future
perieds it the revision affeets both current and future periods.

Judgements made relating to the Directors” going coneern assessment 1s detailed in the Strategic Report on page 6.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other kev sources of esttmation uncertainty at the balance sheet date. that have
a significant risk ol causing a matcrial adjustment to the carrving amounts of the assets and liabilities within the next {inaneial
vear are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Goodwill and Intungibles

Annually the CGroup tests whether intangible assets and goodwill have suffered ans impairment. n accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 1.9 and 1.10.
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The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use caleulations. These calculations
require management Lo make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from cash-generating units and also to choose a
stitable discount rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash flows. The period end impairment reviews were based
on forecasts as al the period end date, which have not been updated to reflect the impact of Covid-19 as this is a non-adjusting
post balance sheet event. The impact of Covid-19 and reduction in {orecasts next year may resull in impairment i future periods,
additional sensitivity analysis and further details of key assumptions are given in Note 9.

Income taxes

The Group is subjeel to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. A level of judgement 1s required in determining the worldwide
provision for ineome taxes. There are transaclions and caleulations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises habilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matlers is dilTerem from the amounts that were initially recorded, such ditferences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilitics in the period in which such determination is made.

In 219 the Group was subject 10 a review by the Austrabian Taxation Office (AT as part of the Top 1000 companies under
their tax performance program. The Group has raised a provision that it considers may become payable to the ATO (1. the tax
liability and associated interest) pursuant to AASB Interpretation 23 in respect of some of these items. However. whilst several
of these malters are still in various states of progress with the ATO, the ultimate outcome 1s unknown and cannot be reiably
Jetermined at the diste of this report. Therefore the provision raised against these uncertain items is one of the Group’s key
estimales, reter 1o Note 6 Lor details.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable protit wall be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
¢an be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

.24 REVISIONS TO IFRS NOT APPLICABLE IN 2019

Al the date of authorisation of these financial statements. the Group has not applied the foilowing new and revised [FRS
Standards that have been issued but are not vet effective and in some cases had not vet been adopted by the LU

« IFFRS 7 Insurance Contracts

+ IFRS 10 and IAS 28 ¢amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joml
Venture

= Amendments to FAS 1 and TAS 8 Delinition of material

«  Conceptual Framework Amendments to Reterences to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS Standards

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements
ol the Group in future periods, except as noted below:

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 establishes the principles tor the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

[FRS 17 outlines a penera! mode!, which is medified for insurance centracts with direet participatzon features. described as the
variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if certain eriteria are met by measuring the lability for remaining coserage
using (he premium allocation appreach. The general model uses current assumptions (o estimate the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. 1t takes inte account marke inferest rates
and the impact of policyhelders™ options and guarantees.

The Standard 1s ¢[Teetive for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2021, with earlv application permmtted. It
is applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the modified retrospective approach or the Cair value approach is
applied. An exposure draft Amendiments to IFRS 17 addresses concerns and implementation challenges that were identitied after
[FRS 17 was published. One of the main changes proposed is the deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by one
vear o annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

For the purpose of the transition requircments, the date of initial application is the start il the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date s the beginning of the pertod mmmediately preceding the date of
mutial application.

f4d
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

IFRS 10 and IAN 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments 1o 1I'RS 10 and [AS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically. the amendments state that gains or losscs resulting from the loss of contral of a
subsidiary that does not contain a busimess in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture thai is accounted for using the
cquity method. are recognised i the parent’s profit or loss only 1o the extent of the unrelated investors” mterests in that asscclale
or joint venture. Similarly. gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of iny estments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) 1o fair valuc arc recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors” interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB: however. earlier application of the amendments is permitted.
The directors of the Company snticipate that the application of these amendments mayv have an mmpact on the Group's
consolidated [inancial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAN 8 Definition of material

The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in TAS 1 easier 1o understand and are not intended to alter the
underlving, concept of materiality in [FRS Standards. The concept of -obscurmng’ material inlormation with immaterial
information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality intluencing users has been changed from “could influence’ to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”.

‘The defimtion of material in [AS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in TAS | In additien. the IASB
amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a detinition of malterial or refer 1o the term “material” to
cnsure consistency.

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods beginming on or after | January 2020, with carlier application
permitied.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS Standards

Together with the revised Coneeptual Framework. which became effective upon publication on 29 March 20138, the [AS has
also 1ssued Amendments to References to the Coneeptual Framework in IFRS Standards The document contains amendments
1o IFRS 2. IFRS 3L IFRB 6, [FRS 14, TAS 1, IAS 8 [AS 34, TAS 37, [AS 38, IT'RIC 12, IFRIC 19, TIFRIC 20, [FRIC 22, and SI1C-
32

Not all amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to references Lo and quotes trom the framework so that
they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Seme pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of the
Framework they are referencing o (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASE in 2001, the [ASB Framework ol 2010, or the
new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions 1n the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions
devetoped in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendments, where thev actuallv are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2020, with
carly application permitted.

Other standards not yet effective
There are no other standards that are not vet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity m the
current or {uture reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SEGMENTAL ANALYSES

The primarny reportable scgments of the Group have been identified as UK & Europe Pathwavs, ANZ Pathwavs and North
America Pathwavs. These are in line with the mnternal reporting of the Giroup’s performance to the Chief Operating Deciston
Maker. ("CODM) identified as the CEO), Tmma Lancaster. Tach segment represents a cash-generating unit CCGU). Goodwill
has been allocated to the UK & 1urope Pathwavs and ANZ Pathways CGUs (reter to Note 9.

£m Revenue Operating loss
Period ended 31
December 2019

On g continuing operations basis:
University Partnerships by Geoagraphical Segment '

Uniled Kingdom & Europe 79.4 15.9
Australia & New Zealand 62.0 218
North America 7.2 €1.2)
Total University Partnerships 148.6 36.5
Shared functional & corporate costs - (14.0%
Total revenue and adjusted EBITDA' 148.6 22.5
FExeeptional and other items - (10.2y
Total revenue and reported EBITDA 148.6 12.3
Impairment - RN
Depreciation and amortisation - (237
Total revenue and Operating loss 148.6 {11.7)

(1)  Adjusted EBITDA 15 defined as camnings before interest. tax. depreciation, amortisation. impairment and exceptional and other items.
(i) During the period there was no trading botween segments and central and shared costs have been allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis.

The above operating loss has been reconeiled to the loss before tax on the tace of the consolidated statement of Ciroup
comprehensive income on page 19

3. OPERATING LOSS

The following charges arc included within cost of salcs, administrative costs and depreciation and amortisation. on 4 continuing
operations basis:

2019

£m

Drepreciation of property, plant and equipment: 3.3
Depreciation of right-ol-use asscts 8.4
Amortisation of intangible assets 12.0
Impairment of intangible assets 0.1
Allowanee lor bad debt 1.5

Services provided by the Group's auditor and network firms

2019

£fm

Fees pavable to the Company s auditor for the audit of parent company and consolidated 0.2
Fees payvable to the Company’s auditor and its associates tor the audit of the Company s 0.3
Total fees payable tor audit services 0.5



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FINANCE INCOME

Finance income:

Bank interest

Finance lease receivables

=9 FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs:

Interest — term: loan

[nterest — revolving credit facility
Amortisation of deferred finance sclup costs
Other finance costs

Interest on lease Labilities

Unrealised foreign exchange losses (Note 8)

0. TAXATION
Analysis of tax credit in the period

Current tax

- UK tax

- (nherseas tay

- Overseas lax in respeet of prior periods

Total current tax charge to the Statement of comprehensive income
Analvsed byv:

Total current tax charge on continuing operalions

Total current tax charge

Deferred Tax (Note 15)

- UK erigination and reversal of temporary diflerences

- UK adjustments in respect of prior periods

- Overseas origination and temporary differences

- Owerseas adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total deferred tax credit 1o the Statement of comprehensive income
Analvsed by

Total deferred tax eredil on continuing operations

Total current tax credit

Total tax eredit to the Statement of comprehensive income

Analysed by
Total tax credit on continuing operalions

Total tax credit to the Statement of comprehensive income

38

(0.5
(1.2)

0.1
(1.2)

(1.2}
(1.2)

3.6
(0.1)

1.9
0.2)

4.0
4.0

4.0

4.0
+.0



$G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TAXATION (CONT’D)

The tax tor the period differs to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19%. Taxation for other jurisdictions ts
caleulated at the rates prevatling in the respective junisdictions.

The total credit for the period can be reconeiled to the protfit in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2019
im
Loss before taxvation [rom continuing operations 265
L.oss belore tax from discontinued operations 24
Loss before taxation 28.9
L.oss on ordinary activities multiplied by rate of corporation tax in UK of 19% 53
L{Teets ol
Hems not taxable or deductible (1.3)
Tax losses not recopnised/paid (0.6)
Ditference in overseas rates ol tax 0.8
Adjustments 1o respect of prior periods  corporation tax 01
Adjustments in respect of prior periods — deferred tax {0.3)
Total taxation credit 4.0

The Group was subject to a review by the Australian Taxation Ofhce CATO™N as part ol the Top 1000 companies under their
tax performance program. As part of this review the ATO identificd a number of arcas for which it determined that there was
cither a low, medium or high level assurance. The Group has raised a provision that 1t considers may become pavable to the
ATO) (Le. the tax labilily and associated interest) pursuand o AASH Inlerpretation 23 in respee! of some of these items.
However. whilst several of these matters are still in various states of progress with the ATO) the ultimate outcome s unknown
and cannol be reliably determined at the date of this report. In addition, the Group is in the process of obtaining a private binding
ruling from the ATO in respect of the withholding tax implication and the deductibility of interest on its external funding
arrangements following the change of ownership on 31 May 2019, At this point, the Group 1s stilk in discussion with the ATO,
and the outcome of this ruling is unknown and cannot be reliably determined at the date of this report. In summary, a total
provision of AUID $2.9m (GBP £1.6m) has been raised against these uncertain items.

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Since 2018, strutegically Study Group has been focused on the core University Parinerships business and as a consequence,
discontinued the non-core parts of the business. These non-core business segments outlined below which, whalst material lines
of husiness at the point of classifying as discontinued. are now relatively small and therelore have been classified as one
discontinued business line (" Discontinued businesses™) for the period ended 31 December 2019

Discontinued businesses comprise:

- Embassy English (‘Embassy’) - the global Ilmbassy business was sold in 2018, In the period to 31 December 2019
amounts recognised as revenue and operating expenses predominantly related to property costs. Final amounts due in
relation to the sale are recoverable in 2020.

- HE Proprictary Brands (*HE Proprictary’) - includes Martin HE and Endeavour. Martin TIE was tormalily
discontinued in 2017 and ali students were taught out by the end of 2019, The {ull exit of the business is on track for
carly 2021, The sale of Endeavour completed in 2018 and cash of £2.1 million was received in September 2019 in
relation to monies held in Eserow Irom the date of sale, Tollowing the satistaction of certain crileria.

- Vocational Education and Training business (*VET’) - VIIT was formally discontinued in 2017 and all students
were taught out by the end of 2019, Whilst the exit of the VET operations is now complete, refund claims continue to
be receinved with £0.7 million of refunds paid in the period to 31 December 2019,



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

Accordingly , the above discontinued operating scgment has been classified as a discontinued operation and is not presented
within the segmental note. The results of the discontinued operation for the pertod are presented below:

Total
2019 £fm
Revenue 04
Operating expenses (2.8)
Loss for the period from discontinued operation 2.4)
Presented as:
Betore Exceptional and (nther [tems (1.8)
ixceptional and (ther [tems (Costs relating to discontinued operations, Note 8) (0.6)
2.4
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:
Total
2019 £m
Net cash used in operating activities (1.4
Net cash generated from [nancing astivities 2.1
Net cash inflow 0.7
8. EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS
Group Group Group
Exceptional cher Total
Items items
2019 2019 2019
£m £m £m
Exceptional and other items included within operating
loss:
Transaction costs 6.0 - 6.0
Stralegic investinents - 1.9 1.9
Restructuring costs 0.9 0.9 1.8
Sharcholder & management fees - 0.9 0.9
Property provision (0.4) - (0.4
6.5 3.7 10.2
Impairment 0.2 - 0.2
Exceptional and other items included within finance costs:
Foreign exchange losses - 0.7 0.7
Total costs relating to continuing operations 6.7 4.4 11.1
Exceptional and other items included within discontinued operations:
Costs relating to discontinued operations {Note 7) 0.6 - 0.6
0.6 - 0.6
Total exceptional and other costs 7.3 4.4 1.7

Ixceptional #ems are those which are material in size or are non-recurring in nature. Other items are not necessarly non-
recurring in nature, but the Drirectors believe that it 1s helptul to show these amounts separately as they are not directly linked to
the recurring trading operations of the business.
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8.

EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS (CONT’'D)

Exceptional items included within operating loss:

Transaction costs included £6.0 million transaction fees m respect of the change of ewnership,

Restructuring costs comprise of projects in the period inciuding £0¢.7 million relating 10 a restructuring project within
the ANZ division and £0.4 million of associated legal fees, which was partially offset by a £0.2 million of historic aged
balance sheet elean-up.

Adjustments made to previously recognised provisions lor onerous property contracts which have not been capitalised
under IFRS 16 due to the available exemptions and practical expedients on transinon dates, resulting in a gain of £6.4
nullion.

Impairment items relate to impairments of centre contract assets associated with certamn North America centres.

Exeeptional items included within the discontinued operation:

Lxceptional items relating to the discontinued VET business meluded final redundancy costs and legal lees of £0.1
milhon.

Lixceptional 1tems include released aged bhalance sheet balances and final transaction fees relating to the prior vear
Fmbassy and Endeavour disposals and the 2019 ACPE sale totalling £0.2 million.

Exceptional items includes bad debt provision for EC totalling £0.3 million.

Other items:

(rher items include strategic investments which comprise of uptront invesuments for the benefit of future vears. non-executive
director tees. restructuring costs and unrealised IX loss that the directors believe are heneticial to strip out when analysing the
underlving truding result for the period.

Strategic investments in the period related 1o the Group’s strutegy project of £1.7 million and £0.2 million of Umiversity
ol Western Australian ¢ UWA™Y additional contract tender costs.

Restructuring costs in the period consist of corporate reorganisation fees. (ranslormation costs i ANZ division and
senioT management reeruiting tees totalling £0.9 mullion. The restructuring and recruitinent costs arose as a result of
the change in ownership and have therefore been elassified as “Other” for the pumpaose of disclosing them separately
from and understanding the underlyving trading result.

Shareholder and management fees include £0.3 million of non-exceutive director fees and £0.6 miilion of senior
management long-lerm ncentive plan scheme costs,

Unrealised foreign exchange losses for the period were £0.7 million due to net unfavourable exchange rate mos ements
durmg the period

9. GOODWILL
2019 Goodwill
£m
COST
Current peried acquisitions (Note 29) 2923
[ixchange rate adjustinents (4.6)
At 31 December 2019 287.7

Impairment testing

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment. or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to the operating segments expected to benetit from the
svnergies of the business combinations in which the goodwill arises as set out helow, and 1s compared to its recoverable value:

Goodwill alloeated to operating segments 2019

£m
UK & Europe Pathwavs 142.4
Australia & New Zealand Pathways 145.3

North America Pathwavs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

The recoverable amount of cach scgment was determined based on value-in-use caleulations, covering a detailed five vear
forecast. followed by an extrapolation of expected cash [lows for the remaining useful lives using a terminal growth rate
determined by management. The present value of the expected cash flows ol each segment is determined by applying a suitable
discount rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and risks speefic to the segment. bench-marked
to the recent change in ownership transaction. The estimate of the recoverable amount tor each CGUs 1s particularly sensitive to
changes in the forecast NSIis as well as the discount and terminal growth: rates as detailed in the sensitivity analvsis below.

Key assumptions Terminal Post-tax

growth rate discount rate
UK & Europe Pathwayvs 2.0% 7.4%
Australia & New Zealand Pathwayvs 2.0% 7.8%

'he grow th rates retlect the long-term average growth rates tor each segment. The discount rates reflect appropriate adjustments
relating to market rnisk and specific risk factors of each segment. For reference, the equinalent pre-tax discount rates for the UK
& turope Pathway s and Australia & New Zealand Pathways CGUs were 8.9% and 11.1% respectively .

Cash flow assumptions

The free cash flow projections considered as at 31 December 2019 were based on the “[ive vear plan” model used at the time of
the change in ownership, consistent with the model used 10 value the acquisition intangible assets on 31 May 2019, The kev
assumptions include reasenable growth rates and profit marging in cach CGUL based on past experience in this market, No
signilicant or unreasonable ctficiency improvements have been taken into account and prices and wages reflect publicly available
forecasts ot inflation for the industry.

Sensitivity

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensilivity of the impairment test to changes in the key assumptions used to determine
the recoverable amount for cach of the CGU's to which goodwill is allocated. Given the balance sheet date 1s relatively close to
the date on which goodwill was recognised (31 May 2019y and given there were no significant changes Lo the business or market
between these two dates. headroom is relatively small at 31 December 2019 1n line with expectations. Therefore the estimate of
the recoverable amount for cach CGUs is particularly sensitive 1o changes in the discount and terminal growth raies. 1 the post-
tax discount rate used were to be increased by | percentage basis poimnt trom 7.4% and 7.8% to 8.4% and 8.8% in the UK &
iurope and Australia and New #ealand Pathways CGUs respectively. impairment losses of £21.8 mallion and £25.7 million
would have to be recognised agamst goodwill. 11 the terminal growth rate were to decrease by (1.5 percentage basis points from
2.0% to 1.3% lor both CGUs. impairment losses of £2.9 million would have to be recognised against goodwill in the Australia
and New Zealand Pathway's CGLUL whereas in the UK and Europe Pathwavs CGU this would yvield a break-cven position with
no impairment and mil headroom.

Further sensitivity analvsis has been carried out on the original impairment model i response to Covid-19. including the
application of downside scenarios and sensitivity analvsis as discussed m the Going Concern assessment on page 6. Ina
downside scenario of reduced NSE s, where 2020 post tax cash flows for UK & Furepe reduce by £17.2 million. and Australia
and New Zealand pathways by £16.0 million, and all other assumptions including cash [Tows in future periods are maintained at
the original impairment model levels, a break-even position woeuld result for both CGU's.

Management is not currently aware of any other reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions on which the recoverable

amounts ot each of the Group's CGUs is basced that would cause the aggregale carrymng amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the related CGUs,
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10. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2019
University Centre Course
Partnershi[;s Brands  Software Contract Devclopment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

COST
Current period acquisitions 3944 12.4 11.4 36 0.4 4222
Additions - - 33 24 - 5.7
Disposals - - (0. - (0D 0.2y
Transters - - - (0.2 - 02
Iixchange ditterence (6.5) - (1.1 0. - (7.7)
At 31 December 2019 387.9 12.4 13.5 5.7 0.3 419.8
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION &
IMPAIRMENT
Charge for the period 7.7 0.2 3.7 0.2 0.1 12.0
[Msposals - - - - (0.1 0.1
Impairment charge - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Exehange difference - - (1.9 - - (0.9
At 31 December 2019 7.7 0.2 2.8 0.5 0.0 11.2
Net book value at 31 December 2019 380.2 12.2 10.7 5.2 0.3 408.6

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisty
the defimtion of an intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recorded in the tunctional currency of the CGU to which they relate. Subsequent to intlial recognition at tair
value, intangible asscels acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumutated
impatrment losses at the balance sheet exchange rate, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Two categories of acquired intangible asseis have been tdentified and recognised: University Partnerships (31 December 2019:
£387.9m) representing the contractual relationships with universities with whom Study Group has the exclusive right to provide
“pathway ™ and other courses, targeted pramarily at overseas students: and Brands (31 December 2019: £12.4m) representing the
‘Bellerbvs™ brand in the UKL under which Study Group provides ils own bespoke pathway and further cducation offerings
dircetly to students without these being branded under a partner university.

Orther intangible assets include Course Development for offline or online courses developed for specific centres. as well as
Centre Contract asscts comprising mainly of launch costs recognised in line with I[FRS 15, Software includes anv software
purchased or developed internaily from which future economic benefits are expected.

Puring the period. £0.2m was transferred from centre contracts to leaschold improvements (refer to Note 113,

Amertisation lor all classes of intangible assets 15 included within “depreciation and ameortisation™ in the statement of
comprehensive income.

An annual smpairment review 1s performed each year in December, as well as any impairment triggers are reviewed throughout

the vear. Specilic impairment in 2019 relate to impaimments of centre contracl assets associatled with certain North America
centres. Based on the annual impairment tests performed. ne additional impairment has been recorded in 2019 (see Note 9).
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11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Freechold land Leaschold -
and buildings improvements Equipment Total
fm £m £fm £fm
COST
Current period acquisilions 73 8.9 6.6 228
Additions - 38 3.0 0.8
[isposals - - (1.8 (1.8)
Transters - 0.2 - 0.2
Exchange difterence - (0.4 (0.4 (0.8)
At 31 December 2019 7.3 12.5 7.4 27.2
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECTATION
Charge for the period 0.2 1.1 2.0 3.3
Pisposals - - (1.8 (1.8}
Lixchange differenece - (0.2) (0.2) ILR])
At 31 December 2019 0.2 .9 - 1.1
Net book value at 31 December 71 1.6 74 26.1
2019
12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Land and buildings Cul.nputer Total
cquipment
£fm £m fm
COST
Current period acquisitions 126.2 0.3 126.5
Additions 0.2 0.1 0.3
Disposals (0.3 - 0.3
Impairments (0.6) - .6)
Revaluations 0.6 - .6
Exchange difterence (1.2y - (1.2)
At 31 December 2019 124.9 (1.4 125.3
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
Charge for the period 8.3 0.1 8.4
Disposals (03 - {0.3)
Foreign currencey lranslation (0.2) - {0.2)
At 31 December 2019 7.8 0.1 7.9
Net book value at 31 December 2019 117.1 0.3 117.4
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12, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT’D)

Tinder the business combination the Group acquired a number of lease contracts for assets ineluding student accommeodation,
schools. classrooms. ottice buildings. I'T data centres and motor vehicles. The average lease term of leases acquired from the
date of acquisition was 3 vears.

Contracts acquired under a business combmation that meet the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 require specific measurement
considerations. Lease abilities acquired have been recorded based on the present value of the rematning lease paviments asifa
new lease had been acquired on the acquisition date, with a corresponding right-of-use asset of equal value hemg recognised.
adjusted for favourable or unfavourable terms compared to market rates as well as other transitional adjustments. The lair value
adjustment recognised at 31 May 2019 compared (o the acquired net assets carryving value resulted in an merease ot the right-
of-use assets by £6.0 million and an increase of the lease liabilities by £6.3m. resulting in an increase to Goodwill of £0.3 million,
The majority of the Group’s right-of-use assets relate to land & buildings, predominantly located m the UK (£86.8 million) and
Australia (£23.4 nallion).

The weighted average lessees™ ineremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the staterment of {inancial
position on the date of acquisition is shown in the table below:

Ineremental Borrowing Rate per Lease Bucket

-3 Years 5-10 Years 10-15 Years > 15 Yecars
Region
1TK & Rest of World 2.67% 3.23% 3.53% 3.97%
Australia 4.61% 4. R86Y% 5.29% 1/a
New /Zcaland n/a 4.96%, n/a n/a

[.and & buildings additions in the period largely related to Aberdeen, a new University Partner (£0.2 mulliom) Computer
cquipment additions in the period (£0.1 million) related (o the renewal of the Sydney Data Centre contract.

Right-of-use assets relating to lease contracts for sttes which are closed or discontinued are considered standalone CGls as they
generate cash inflows imdependent from the rest of the group. At the date of acquisition, suclt right-of-use assets have been tested
for impaimient and have been written down (o their value-in-use 0 accordunce with [AS 36, At the financial period end. a
reassessment of the value-in-use of such assets has been performed, with the net impairment charpe of £0.6m rellecting the
change in assumptions between the acqguisition date and the year end.

The maturity analvsis of lease habilities is presented i Note 18,

2019
Amounts recognised in profit and loss fm
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 84
Interest expense on lease labilities 3.0
Expense relating to short-term leases 3.0
Expense relating to leases of low value assets 01
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets (.2

At 31 December 2019, the Group is commuitted to £2 million for short-term leases.

Approxnmately one third of the property leases mn which the Group 1s the lessee contain rent review clauses within the lease
contract, the majority of which are subject (o indexation increases, all based within the UKL In contrast, the majonity of leases in
Australia have tixed increases built into the leasc contract which are therefore included in the right-of-use asset valuation
calculated at the commencement of the lease.

Indexation price increases in 2019 were 5.7% on average and the impact of expected future rent inereases 1s not considered to
present a significant liquidity risk to the Group.

The total cash outllow tor leases amount to £13.8 niilion.
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13. INVESTMENTS

The movements m the net book value of interests n joint ventures are as [ollows:

Interest in

joint venture

2019

fm

Current period acquisitions 0.3
Share ol associate™s profit -
At 31 December 0.3

Subsidiary Undertakings

Details of the subsidiarv undertakings of the Company , which are included n the consolidated financial statements, are set out

in the following table.

Name of Entity Country “f' Ownership Nature
: Incorporation Interest
Controlled Entities: % Method
123U Holdings SPV Pty [1d Australia 100 Indirect Holding
EDU Investments SPV Pty Lid Australia LG [ndirect Holding
Studv Group (Finance) Pty 1.1d Australia 100 Indireet Holding
Study Group Pry 1.td Australia 100 Indirecet Holdmg
Australian Institute of Applied Sciences Pty Lid Austraha 100 Indirect Trading
Apphed Training Pty 1.4d Australia 100 Indirect 1Dormant
Study Group Australia Pty 1.ad Austratia 16O Indirect Trading
Taylors Institute of Advanced Studies Lid ' Australia - Indirect {ormant
study Group do Brazil Agenciamento e Participacoes LTDA Brazil 100 indirect Trading
Study Group Canada Higher Education [ne. Canada 100 Indirect Trading
Xuedi Hdueation Consulting (Betjing) [td China 100 indirect Dormant
SGIPL Study Group India Private Limited India 60 lndireet Trading
SG Study Group Malavsia Sdn. Bhd Malayvsia 100 Indarect Trading
Study CGiroup NZ Lid New Zeualand 100 Indirect Trading
SGT Consultancy Services Nigeria Nigeria 100 Indirect  Trading
KU UK Intermediate Ltd ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding
HDU UK Management Serviees Led United Kingdom 100 Indirect Tlolding
EDU UK Topeo 1.4d 0 United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding
1 /
Study Group Hoeldings UK Lid ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holdmg;
orrmant
Study Group UK Tad United Kingdom 100 Indirect 1olding
Rellerbys UK Lid (formerly Studv Group 1.1d) United Kingdom 100 Indirect Dormanl
Study Group Distance Learning [.td ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Trading
Study Group 1.td (formerly Bellerbys Liducational Services Fudy ™ United Kingdom 100 Indireet Trading
SG Global Bideo Ld ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Hotding
5G Global Midee Ltd U [nited Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding
S Global Fineo Ltd ™ United Kingdem 100 Direet tHolding
FC Higher Education Ine. USA 100 Indirect Dormant
LU LIS Holdeo Ine. USA 100 Indirect Holding
Study Group USA Higher Education L1.C LSA 100 Indirect  Trading
Study Group USA Ine. USA 100 Indirect Trading
Joint Venture:
Universily of Sydnev Foundation Program Py Lig ™ Australia 50 Indirect Trading

The registered address of all Group companies registered in Australia is: Level 24, 201 Elizabeth Street, Sydney 2000, Australia

The registered address of the above Group company registered in Brazil is: Suite 81, 8" Floor, Avenue Bridageiro. Faria 1Lima.
No 1234 Jardim Paulistane, Sac Paulo, 01452-002.

The registered address of the above Group company registered in Canada is: Suite 900-1959 Upper Water Strect, Halifax. Nova
Scotia. [33] 3N2.
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13. INVESTMENTS (CONT D}

The registered address of the above Group company registered in China is: Units 1707, E Tower. No. C-12. Guanghua Road.
Beijng. China.

The registered address of the above Group company registered in India 1s: 423A&B. 4% 'leor World Trade Cemre. Barakhamba
Lane. New Delhu

The registered address of the above Group company registered in Malaysia 1s: Level 21, Suite 21,01, The Gardens South Tower.
Mid Valley Citv. Lingkaran Sved Putra, 592000 Kuala Lumpur.

The registered address the above Group company registered in New Zealand is: Tavlors Iouse. 75 Karangahape Road. Auckland
1000, New Zealand.

The registered address the above Group company registered in Nigeria is: First Business Alliance Suites. 2% Floor Plot 5, Chiel
Yesuf. Ablodun Street. Vietonia [sland. Lagos. Nigeria.

The regisiered address ot all Group companies registered tn the UK 1s: 1 Billinton Way, Brighton, Fast Sussex, BNT 4117

The registered address of all Group compantes registered in the USA s 271 Centreville Rd, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware
19808, TISA.

() This entity is classified as a controlled entity as the Group has the capacity to control both the operating and financial decisions. and the capacity to
dominate and control the composition of the Board of Directors,

(1) EDU UK Management Services Lid (registered number: 07285370), Study Group Holdings UK [ad (registered number: 03888001). Study Group Distance
[earning 14d (registered number: 07145464). 8G Global Bideo Ld (registered number: 11827693), 8G Global MidCo Lid (registered number: 11827648}
and 8G Global Finco [4d (registered number: 11827569), wholty owned subsidiaries of the company. are exempt from the requirements ol the Companies
et 2006 relating 1o the audit of individual accounnts by virtue of section 4794 for non-dormant subsidiaries. All outstanding liabilitics as at 31 December
2019 of DU UK Management Services 14d. Study Group Holdings UK Lid, Study Group 1id. Study Group Distanee |eaming Ltd. SG Globul Bideo
14d. SG Global Mideo Ltd and $G ¢Hobal Fince [1d have been guaranteed by the Company and ne liability is expected 1o arise under the guarantee.

(it The University of Sydney Foundation Program Pty [id is a joint venture between The University of Svdney and Studv Group Austrafia Pty Limited. Under
this arrangement the joini venture entity is required to pay rovalties and fees for the provision of services to its joint venture pariners. In fotal. these
commitments are caleulated as approximately §7%0 of gross revenue recognised in the accouning period. The principal place of business for this joint
venture is at the University of Sydney. and the registered oftice address o the joint venture entity is Level 24, 201 Elizabeth Street. Svdney 2000, Australia.
13oth parties hold equal ownership and voting rights of 50%e cach.
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14. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

2019

fm
Amuounts receivable under finance leases:
Year | 1.1
Year 2 1.1
Year 3 0.9
Year 4 0.6
Year 5 0.4
Onwards 2.6
Undiscounted lease pavments 6.7
[Less: uncarmed fingnee income (1.2)
Present value ol lease pay ments receivable 3.5
Impairment loss allowance -
Nel investment i the lease S
Undiscounted lease pavments anahv zed as:
Recoverable afier 12 months 5.6
Recoverable within 12 months 1.1

6.7
Netinvestment in the lease analvsed as:
Recoverable after 12 months 4.7
Recoverable witiin 12 months 0.8

5.5

During the period. the Group acquired companies with intermediary lessor arrangements that meet the definition of a finance
sublease, located i Australia (hwo subleases) and the United Kingdom (one sublease). The acquired companies had previously
entered into such finance leasing arrangements as o lessor for certain propertics which were no longer used relating to
discontinued businesses and opergtions. The average term of those finance leases entered into 15 6.7 vears.

The Group's exposure to Toreign curreney risk as a result of the leasing arrangements ts not considered 1o be signilicant. as a
large proportion of the net investruent in the lease 1s denominated in Sterling (£3.7 million).
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15. DEFERRED TAX

Deterred tax is caleulated in full on temporary differences under the hability method. The movement on the deferred tax assets
and lLiabilities is as shown below

Acquired via Created on (Debity/ Credit Unrealised Closing
business acquisition to P&L Foreign balance
combination Exchange
gain /(loss)
£m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax asscts
Tax losses carried forward 1.9 - 0.2 - 2.1
Fixed assets 36 - 0.6 - 4.2
[ease liabilities 11.1 - (L. - 9.4
Accruals and provisions 3.3 - 1.1 - 4.4
19.9 - 0.2 - 20.1
Deferred tax liabilities
intangable assets (0.8) (97.7 23 1.9 (94.3)
Right-ot-use asscts (10 - 2.0 - (8.1)
Prepavments (2.7 - 0.7 - (2.0)
(13.6) 97.7) 5.0 1.9 (104.4}
Net deferred tax asset / (Liability) 6.3 97.7) 5.2 1.9 (84.3)
Deferred tax assets have been recogmised in respeet of all losses and other temporary differences to the extent thai it is probable
that those assets will be recovered.
The below table shows the deferred tax balances by jurisdiction: 2019
fm
Australia & UK Total
New Zealand im
£m £m
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 0.1 2.0 21
Property, plant and cquipment 1.0 32 4.2
l.case liabilities 9.4 - 9.4
Aceruals and provisions 3.2 1.2 4.4
13.7 6.4 20.1
Deferred tax liabilities
[ntangible assets (0.2) (94.1) (94.3)
Right-of-use assets (8D - (8.1
Prepayments 2. - 2.0
(10.3) (94. 1) (194.4)
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 3.4 (87.7) (84.3)

Finanee Bill 2016 enacted provisions to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. TTowever. in the
March 2020 Budget it was announced that the reduction m the UK rate to 17% will now not occur and the Corporation Tax Rate
wiil be held at 19%. As substantive enactinent is after the balance sheet date. deferred tax balances as at 31 1Jecember 2019
continue 1o be measured at a rate of 17%. I{ the amended tax rate had been used, the deferred tax liability would have been
£10. tm higher.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019
£im

CURRINT:
Trade receivabies"™ 39.1
L.oss allowance (8.1)
Trade recervables net 31.0
Other receivables 1.1
Prepavments 26.0
58.1

(¢} luition leey in some jurisdictions are invoiced in full prior to course commencement: however they are not pavable until commencement of
cach semester resulting in non-current receivables. No interest is charged on trade reecivables,

The following table shows the movement in the Joss allowance that has been recognised for trade receivables:

2019
£fm
Al aequisition 6.7
Impatrment losses recognised on receivables S
Impatrment losses reversed (0.1)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 8.1
T'rade receivables can be analvsed as Tollows:
Agceing of trade receivables net of loss allowance
Ageing of trade reccivables net of loss allowance 2019
fm
Not past due 21.0
30 - 60 davs 6.4
60 - 90 davs 1.6
90 - 120 davs 1.3
> 120 davs 0.7
310

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable. the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of eredit risk is limited due to the
customer basc being large and unrelated.

Ageing of impaired receivables 2019
im

1 - 120 davs (0.1)
= 120 davs (8.0
8.1

s

The net charge relating to the increase in loss allowance has been included in ‘adminisirative expenses' in the statement of
comprehensive income.

0
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

Trade receivables represent amounts due trom students and university partners or, in some cases. their agents.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CURRENT:
Trade payables
(iher pavables and aceruals

Interest acerued — term loans

18. UNEARNED REVENUES

Deterred income {eurrent)

All deferred ncome ariscs [Tom students paying tuition fees in advance.

19. LEASE LIABILITIES

Maturity analysis:
Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 3

Cinwards

Less: uncamed interest

Analysed as:
Non-currcnt
Current

2019
£m

2019
£m
113.0

2019
£m

19.3
250
17.9
16 %
12.8
755
167.9
(38.3)

129.4

—————e e

1132
16.2

129.4

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilitics. Lease contracts ar¢ managed by the Group’s
property and operations departments. and the impact of lease labilitics on future forecast cash flows are monitored within the

(iroup’s treasury tunction,
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20. PROVISIONS

Movement in provisions: Emplnyt:c Property Other Total
Benefit v
2019 2019 2019 2019
£fm £m im £m
Current period acquisitions 4.6 4.7 1.4 10.7
Additional provision recognised 2.6 0.2 0.2 3.4
Provisions utilised (2.0) 1.6) (.9 3.5
I'oreign currency translation (0.2) - - 0.2
5.0 4.3 0.7 10.0
2019
im
CURRENT:
Emplovee benefits 3.8
Property provisions 0.3
Other 0.7
4.8
2019
£m
NON CURRENT:
Emplovee benetits 1.2
Property provisions 4.0
Other —
5.2

Fmplovee benefit provistons relate predominantly to annual leave and Australian long service leave entitlements which will be
utilised upon emplovees taking their long service leave, and also includes a provision relating to the Group’s 2019 long-term
meentive plan for senior emplovees. pavable mm 2022 1 certain largets are met by the end of 2021

Property provisions predominantly relate to dilapidation provisions on leased properties. Property provisions witl unwind over
the length of the respective leases. which expire across a variely of dates. ranging fTom one to twenty five vears.

Other predominantly relates to a provision for student refunds and refleets the Group's expected liability to refund students for
fees paid up front and where the course was not completed

21. BORROWINGS

Interest rate Maturity 2019 2019

£m £m

CURRENT BORROWINGS Principal Value

£30.0m Revolving credit [acihity 4.75% + Libor/BBSY 2025 - -

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

Secured borrowings at amortised cost

GRBP £115.0m Term loan 6.00% + Libor 2026 115.0 1111

AU $88.9m Term loan 6.00% + BBSY 2026 47.3 +45.7

AUTY$125.7m Ternn loan 6.00% + BBSY 2026 66.8 64.7

229.1 221.5
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21. BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Uadrawn berrewing facilities

At 31 December 2019, the Group had available £30.0 million of undrawn commitied borrowing facilities. The Group has drawn
these [aeilities in full from March 2020, Debt issue and external borrowing costs are amortised to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the effective mnterest method

At 31 Mav 2019, Group received term loans amounting to GBP £113 milhon and AUD § 2146 miilion. as shown above. which
have a termination date of 31 May 2026, Of the AUD $ 214.6 million, an AU $88.9 million tranche 1s held i the TTK and
utilised in a net investment hedge against the foreign operations of the Group.

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's policies and strategies in refation to risk and tinancial instruments are cxplained in the Directors’ Report. Accounting
policies used to account for financial instruments are detailed in Note 1. There are no externally imposed capital requirements
tfrom any of our lenders.

Net investment hedge
Al 3] December 2019 the Group had entered into a net investment hedge using the AUD $88.9 million drawn in the UK 1
hedge the (iroup’s foreign operations. The hedge 1s deemed 100% effective up to the value of the loan.

Hedging activities and derivatives

n August 2019, the Group entered into two interest sap agreements to cap the Noating interest rates on a 6-monthly basis on
30% of the GBP (£57.5 million) and 30% of AUIY term loans ($107.3 milliony until 30 August 2022, covermmg 50% of the
Group’s total loans. These interest rale caps are valued using valuation techniques which employ the use of market observable
inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value
calculations. Study Group obtain the values for these mterest rate caps on a quarterly basis from HSBC UK Bank Ple.

Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

Al 31 Deeember 2019 there is no difference between the carrving amount and fair value of each of the following classes of
tinancial assets and liabilitics, principally due to their shorl maturity: trade and other receivables, cash at bank and m hand., trade
and other payables and current borrowings. There is no signilicant difference between the fair value and carrving amount ol
non-current borrowings as the npact of discounting s not significant.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is primarily exposed to fluctuations in the Australian 12ollar and US Dollar. The following table details how the
(iroup's income and equitv would increase on a betore tax and exceptional costs basis, given a 10% decrease in the respective
vear-end currencies against Pound Sterling and in accordance with IFRS 7 all other variables remaining constant. A 10%
decrease i1 the value of Pound Sterling against the respective vear-end currencies would have the opposite elfect.

Income Equity

Sensitivity Sensitivity

fm £m

Australian Doltar 0.7) {13.2)
1S Dollar 0.2 (0.8)
Other 0.8 0.4
Fquity decrease 6.3 (13.6)

Foreign exchange rates
Period end and average exchange rates per £1.00 are as follows:
31 December 2019

Australian Dollar - period average 1.8365
Australian Deollar - period end 1.88401
US Dollar - period average 1.2770
S Dollar - period end 1.3186

)
(o8]
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22, FINANACIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safegoard the Group's ability 1o remain as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benetits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adyust the amount of dividends paid to
sharcholders. returmn capital to sharcholders. issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. Net debt tor this purpose is calculated as the principal amount outstanding of external indebtedness,
meluding term loans and RCE, less cash and cash equivalents. The ratto 1s caleulated as net debt divided by total capital. Total

capital ts caleulated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balunce sheet plus net debt.

2019
£m
Tetal borrowings (Note 21) 221.5
f.ess: Total cash and cash equivalents (44.0)
Net Debt 177.5
Total Equity (306.7)
Net debt to equity ratio 58%
23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
2019 2019
Number of shares £
A Ordinary shares 846,153 846,153
3 Ordinarv shares 6,415 6,415
C shares 123,000 147,600
Preterence shares 334,824,832 334,824,832
Total share capital and share premium 335,800 400 335,825,000
Movements in shares:
Number of Par value Share Total
shares £ premium £
£

Details
Atincorporation 1 1 - 1
Subdivision and re-designation of shares 99 - - -
Shares 1ssued on 31 May 2019 333.149.900 332.312.308 837.691 333,149,999
Shares 1ssued on 19 June 2019 1,627,500 1.512,316 137.684 1,650,000
Shares issued on 23 July 2019 997 400 985,025 14,975 1,000,000
Shares issued on 16 Aupust 2019 25,000 24,938 62 25,000
335.800_.400 334,834,588 990 412 335,825,000

S Global Topeo was incorporated on 14 February 2019 with a single £1 Ordinary Share issued at par

On 31 May 2019 the 1 Ordinary Share of £1 was sub-divided inte 100 Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each and were re-designated as

100 A Ordinary Shares.

On 31 May 2019 332.303.847 Preterence Shares of t1 cach were issued at par. Additionally. 846,053 A Ordinary Shares of

£0.01 cach were 1ssued at a premium

On 19 June 2019 1,511,133 Preference Shares of £1 each were tssued at par. Additionally, 3.847 13 Ordinary Shares and 112.500

C Shares of £3.01 each were 1ssued al a premium.

On 23 July 2019 984 893 Preference Shares of £1 each were 1ssued al par. Additionally, 2,505 B Ordinary Shares and 10,500 C

sharcs of £0.01 cach were issued at a prermium,

On 16 August 2019 24 937 Preterence Shares of £1 each were issued at par. Additionally, 63 B Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each

were issued at a premium.

N
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

Righus, preferences and resirictions

The Ordinary A and Ordinary 13 are considered pari passu as it the Ordinary Shares constituted one class of shares in the case
of dividends.

‘T he preference shares acerue a fived cumulative preferential dividend at the annual rate of 10% of a sum equal to the entire
noninal and premium amounts paid up on such Preference Share. If the dividend is not paid. the unpaid amount carrtes mteresi

at 10%.

Lach Ordinary A and Ordinary B share carry one vote per share. The C Shares and Preference Shares carrv no voting rights.

24. EMPLOYEES
2019
tm
Stall costs for the Group dunng the period:
Wages and salaries 56.1
Social security costs 4.8
Superannuatien and other pension costs 3.0
63.9
Average monthly number of people emploved by the Group:#*™!
2019
Teaching (Direet and Indirect) 1,134
Sales. marketing and distribution 3R89
Administration 637
2,160

(1) Caleulated from the date of acquisition ot the 3 May 2019, thus reflecting the 7 months of trade.
(1) Includes those directors who were emploved by the Group during the period.

The average number of people emploved by the parent company during the period 15 ml.
K¢y management compensation:

Keyv management are delined as the Global Executive Team (GE'T), which is the team ol senior management who support the
Chief Fxecutive Offjeer in the dav to day management of the Group's aflairs and are invelved in strategic decision making,

2019
£m
Salaries and short-term benetits mcluding management incentives 3.1
Post-employment benetits 0.1
3.2
Aggregate Directors' remuneration:
The total amount for directors' remuneration was as lollows:
2019
£m
Salaries and short-term benetits 4.9
0.9
Highest paid director
Salaries and short-terim benefits 0.6
0.6

LA
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25. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below detatls changes in the Group's liabilities arising, {rom financing activities, ineluding both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash tlows were, or future cash ows will be, classitied
in the Group’s consolidated cash Tow staiernent as cash flows from financing activities.

2019
Note Non-cash changes
Acquisition Foreign Interest ~on-cash Non-cash Deferred 31
Financing exchange . : finance  borrowing  December
A ) clement in lease )
cash flows movements . sy e lease costs 2019
operating liabiliey . .
£fm A i receivable unwind
activities movements
movements
Share capital 23 3358
& share 33538
premium
Borrowings 21 (27.4 2525 (2.9 (0.7 221.5
I‘llla}lgc leése 14 05 (5.9) 02 (0.3 2.3
receivables
[ .ease 19 - 129.4
U 9.2 3 .0
libilities {10.8) 139.2 (3.0 4.(
Total 298.1 385.8 (2.9) (2.8) 4.0 (0.3) 0.7y 681.2

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments
‘The Group had no capital commitments at the peried end.

Contingent liabilitics

The Company and its subsidiary underiakings are. from time to time. parties to legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the
ordinary course of business. The Dircetors do not expect there to be a material cash outflow on any items known at the period
end.

I'he Group's activitics are monitored by a number of regulatory bodies depending on the jurisdiction of the operation. From time
to time, there is a risk that the Group may not comply with all requirements imposed by the relevant regulater giving rise to a
nisk ot retund of fees. penalties or both,

The Group had £10.5 million in sutstanding bank guarantees at the end of the period against an AUD $25.0 million lcase line
facility held with HISBC UK Bank Ple. The majority of these are guarantces against future reptal commitments. In February

2020 the value of outstanding bank guarantees reduced by £1.2m resuiting in outstanding bank guarantees of £9 3 mullion.

In addition the Group provides guarantees in the ordinary course of business, which correspond mainly to lease guarantees i
respect of vanous buildings, for which no financial exposure has been identified at the period end.

No other contingent liabilities noted.
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

There were no contracts with SG Global Topeo Limited (the Company) or any of ils subsidiaries existing during or at the end of
the fnancial period in which a director of the Company was materially interested. The Group has taken advantage of the
exemption available under IAS 24 Related party disclosures' not to disclose transactions and balances between Group entities
that have been eliminated on consolidation

Revenue of £18,533.130 and a marketing contribution ot £317.633 was received from the joint venture The University of Sy dney
Foundatton Program Pty Ltd during the peried. Related party pavables of £2.379.688 are owing to the University of Sydney
Foundation Program Pty Lid at 31 December 2019.

The Group paid Kugler Advisory Ltd. a company in which a director of The Group is a director and sharcholder, £37.500 m
consultaney fees duning the period. with £nil outstanding at 31 Decernber 2019,

28, ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate parent undertaking is Ardian LBO Fund VIB S.L.P

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Ardian LBO Fund VI B S.1..P, a company incorporated in France.

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 May 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of and obtained control of HIXI UK Topeo Limited (~Study
Group). Studv Croup is the leading internattonal provider of international education, driving suecess for its students and
partners. Its core business s the delivery of TTigher Education and Pathway programmes. Study Group was sequired by 56
Gilobal Bideo Limited to facilitate the change in ownership from Providence Equity Partners to Ardian LBO Fund VI B 81D
Acquisition-telated costs (included in exeeptional costs within administrative expenses Note 8) amount 1o £6.0 million.

"I'he amounts recognised 1n respect of the identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities assumed are as sct oul in the table below.

The following table summarises the consideration paid lor Study Group and the amounts ol the assets acquired and liabilitics
assumed recognisced at the acquisition date.

Fair Value

31 May
2019
fm
Total consideration 287.5
Fair value of net assets acquired
Property. plant and cquipment 228
Right-of-usc assets 126.5
Investments 0.3
[dentifiable mtangible asscts 4222
Deferred tax asscets 19.9
Cash acquired 6.2
Iinance lease receivables 59
Financial assets 1155
Financial liabilities (221.1)
Deferred tax liabiltties {(111.3)
l.ease Liabilities (139.2)
Outstanding borrowings (232.5)
Fair value of net assets acquired (4.8
Goodwill (Note 9) 292.3

h
~J
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONT'D)

Group
31 May 2019
£m

Net cash flow arising on acquisitions:
Cash consideration (287.3)
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 6.2
Transaction costs (Note 8) (6.0}
(287.3)

There is no Turther consideration pay able.

The goodwill relates to both the value of the university partnerships and brands bevond the forecast peniod ol 30 vears, together
with the value inherent 1n acquiring the business as a going ¢oncern rather than acquiring a group of assets indnidually

All revenue included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive meome for the peried 1s atinbutable to the acquisition of
Study Group. 1f the acquisition of Study Group had been completed on the first day of the {inancial vear. conlinuing group
revenues for the vear would have been £273.7 million and continuing operating profit would have been £13.4 million.

Insendi

Study Group acquired 100% of the share capital of and obtained control of Insendi Limited (Insendi™) on 26 Tebruary 2020
Insendi s the leading online learning platform innovater based in the UK. The primary reason for this business combination 1s
o bring to Study Group a high-quality online learning plattorm and associated capabilities. Tnitial consideration of £10m (net of
the cash acquired of £1.0m) was paid on completion and contingent consideration will become payable based on various targets
including {iture EBITDA achicvements, new partner contracts and partner renewals, likely to be between £3m - £10m.

The provisional tair values and carrving amounts recognised at the acquisition date for Insendi are as follows:

£m

Net Working Capital (0.5)
Partner relationships 2.6
Technology Intangible 29
Deterred tax (1.0}
4.0

Goodwill 12.9
Fair value ol assets Acquired 169
Cash and accrued Consideration 177
Cash Acquired on Acquisition (0.8)
16.9

The prolits carned during the period sinee acquisition to 31 October 2020 amount to £0.3m
30. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Study Group acquired Insendi Limited (*Tnsendi™) on 26 February 2020, Insendi 1s an online leamning platform based in the UK
that offers a learning experience platform and a range of services that help business schools and universities implement new
models ol online education. Reler to Note 29 for turther details.

The impact that Covid-19 has had on the business and consequently on the Dircelors™ going coneern assessment is detailed in
the Strategic Report on page 6.
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PGSITION
as at 31 December 2019

31 December

2019
Note £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due {rom subsidiars undertakings 349.5
Investments 3 1.0
350.5
NET ASSETS 350.5
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 4 334.8
Share premium reserve 1.0
Retamned eamings 14.7
TOTAL EQUITY 3505

The company reported a profit for the tfinancial period ended 31 December 2019 of £14.7m.

The fimanecial statements and notes on pages 39 (o 63 were approved by the B3oard of directors on |1 12ecember 2020 and were
signed on its behalt by Nick Williams.

N Williams
Director SG Global Topeo Limited Registered no. 11827427

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [inancial statements.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
tor the period ended 31 Pecemnber 2019

Ordinary Share Retained Total Equity

Share Capital Premium Earnings
£m Reserve Lm

im

£fm
Profit tor the period - - 14.7 14.7
{ssuc ol share capital 3348 1.0 - 335.

Balance at 31 December 2019 3348 1.0 14.7 350.5

The accompanying notes form an mlegral part of these financiak statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Accounting policies for the period ended 31 December 2019

SGr Global Topeo Limited (formerly Surrey Topeo Limited) was incorporated on 14 Februan 2019 and is a compan
mncorporated, domiciled and registered in the United Kingdom. The company name was changed irom Surrey Topeo Limited
o 5CG Global Topeo Limited on 29 May 2019, The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of 1 2irectors
on 11 December 2020

1.2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These fmancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework { I'RS 1017} on the historical cost basis.

I preparing these financial statements. the Company applies the recognition. measurement and disclosure requirements of
International T'inancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRS™), but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006

In these fimancial statements the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:
¢ acash tlow statement and related notes: and
¢ the requrements of TAS 24 Related Party Transactions and has. therefore, not disclosed transactions betw cen the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries: and
e the effect of new but not vet effective 1FRSs
o certain disclosures required by [FRS 13 Fair alue AMfeasurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial
Instrument Disclosures

As permitted by Scetion 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a scparale income statement for the Compuny has net been
included n these fimancial statements. As permitted by the audit fee diselosure regulations, disclosure of non-audit fees
mmlormation is not meluded inrespect of the Company . No significant judgements and estimates for the Company are noted.

1.3. INVESTMENTS
I the Company's financial statements, mvestments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment.
1.4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Companies operations expose it to a variety of finanetal risks that include the effeets of changes in foreign currency
exchange rales. market interest rates, credit risk and its liquidity position. The Company has in place a risk mansgement
programme that sceks to limil adverse effects on the financial performanee of the Company which s outlined i the
Dnrectors™ Report.

1.5. FOREIGN CURRENCY

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of cach of the Company 's entities are measured using the curreney of the primary
ceonomic environment in which the entity operates (*the tunctional curreney ). The consolidated financial statements are
presenied in Pound Sterling, whieh is the Company s Tunctional and presentation currency .

Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencics are recorded in Pound Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchanpe gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised in the stalement of
comprehensive income. except when deferred in equity as qualifving cash flow hedges. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange
difterences are taken 1o the statement ol comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to forergn curreney loans and other foreign exchange adjustments are included
within (inance income and expenses.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
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OPERATING RESULT

I'he auditor’s remuneration {or audit and other services 1s disclosed in Note 3 to the consohdated financial statements. and
has been borne by the Company s subsidiary undertakings.

INVESTMENTS

The movements in the net book value of interests in subsidiany undertakings are as follows:

£m

Current period acquisttions i.0

COMPANY SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Details of the subsidiary undertaking of the Company. which are included in the financial statements, are set out below.

Country of Ownership Natur
Name of Entity Incorporation Interest % e
Directly Controlled Entities:
SG Global FinCo Limited United Kingdom 100 Holding
Details ol indirectiv controlled entities are detailed mn note 13,
4. SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2019
Number of £
shares
A Ordinany shares 846,153 846,054
B Ordinary shares 6,415 6,415
C shares 123,000 147,600
Preference shares 334,824,832 334,824,832
Total share capital and share premium 335,800,400 335,824,901
Refer 1o Note 23 in the Group accounts for details of movements in shares.
Rights, preferences and restrictions
The Ordinary A and Ordinary B are considered part passu as if the Ordinary Shares constitated one class of shares m the
cuse of dividends.
The preference shares accrue a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at the annual rate of 1G% of a sum equal to the entire
nominal and premium amounts paid up on such Preference Share. [f the dividend 15 not paid. the unpaid amount carries
interest at 10%.
Fach Ordinary A and Ordinary I3 share carrv one vote per share. The C Shares and Preference Shares carrv no voting rights
5. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

There were no emplovees in the current period other than the directors who were remuncrated by a subsidiary undertaking,
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ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CbNTROLL[NG PARTY

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Ardian LLI3O Fund VI B S.L.P

The ulumate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Ardian £.BO Fund VI B S.1.12, a company incorporated in France.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in 1AS 24 {rom the requirement to disclose transactions between the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
study Group acquired Insendi Limited (" lnsendi™y on 26 February 2020, Insendi 1s an online learning platform based in the
UK that offers a learning experience platform and a range of services that help business schools and universitics implement

nev models of onhine education. Reter to Note 29 of the Group Financial Statements lor further details.

‘The 1mmpact that Covid-19 has had on the business and consequently on the Directors’ going concern assessment 1s detailed
in the Strategic Report on page 6.



